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onsidounanonowaninsaiumsrinils (Profitability Ratio)

omsIMIsiurU (Sogex) 90.45 90.40 93.22
onsimisans (Soda) 2444 20.67 33.22
onswanouINuUIionu (Soga) 6.40 5.08 10.95
onSwanouinuMNMsavnU* (sogea) - N/A 14.50
omsidounanous:ansmulumsshiduniu (Efficiency Ratio)

ONSWanoUINUMNAUNSWH (Soda) 5.42 415 7.07
OnSIMsniyUuovaunswda (i) 0.22 0.20 0.21
oms1doudInSERUlELIEMOMSIDU (Financial Ratio)

ONs1EoUaUNSWENEOVADFOAUNSWESOU (Soga) 61.31 79.33 33.77
oms1douaUNSWanosalRrioauNsweasou (Sogex) 2791 13.82 49.60
onsidoundauriodoudjiioriu (i) 0.23 0.13 0.32
onsidouMmstgpuduwa (Soga) 2.22 20.37 19.05
Oms1doULBUe

omsidouuavnulunannsweroauNswe (sogar) 0.16 - 0.35
PUNOVNUAMWAZOLANS (FuoruMUINTUZientNoL) (sogar) 479.09 845.93 377.38
JanmmuJnyBrionuandny () 5.64 535 519
anmmudnyBrionuandey (Fully Diluted) () 5.64 535 519

* OnSIWanouUInUMNMSAavNUAUOIUDIN . Puduwamnmsavnu/iduavnu
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ADUQFIMOMSANUN UStunyms anniusmisssio The American University of Washington D.C.

dndoumsiionuliuustne (Sosa:) 0.17

Ussaumsnirioulus:e: 5 U 2544 - Joouu USIBIUNSSUMS  USISIUNSSUMSUSMS 13:NSSMSWoLvanil

UsUnnannswd gloT Indidau (UsinAlng) 9 (Unisu)

2524 - Joouu NSsSUMSWonMs UOB Kay Hian Private Limited, Singapore
2519 - Uoouu NssuMswWonMs Kheng Leong Company Limited, Singapore

Bo - ana wedlsou  ADIDALIWS

FIIIARLY US:81UNSSUMSMSovaoUIaNSSMSoas:

oy 48 U

ADUQFIMOMSANUN UStunymS misiu University of New South Wales, Australia

msilnousu amuau 10D

nanams Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) suil 30 U 2547
nanams Audit Committee Programme (ACP) sUn 4 U 2548
dndoumsfioruluusung (Sodas) 0.09

Ussaumsnuirimulus:e: 5 U 8 .. 2550 - Uoouu US:81UNSSUMSMSODaoUIaNSSMSHAas:
USUnhannswd gloT Indidsu (UsinAlng) 91 (Unisu)
2548 - 7 0U.A. 2550 NSSUMSNSI0aoUIaNSsuMsoas:
USUnnannswd gloT 1Indidsu (UsinAlng) 91 (Unisu)
n.A. 2548 - UooUu NssUMSs Econolodge Company Limited

5.A. 2546 - NA. 2547 Usssiu Usun 1 B B llaus 91nm

5.A. 2543 - 5.A. 2546 USBIUMNUNNUSMS USBN ousUNS wanst o1nm - (umisu)

d. 2541 - nA. 2543 NSSUMSWIMMS USUN Cerberus Partners 91117

2540 - 2541 owosams SG Asia (Singapore)

2632 - 25639 Country Treasurer / Head of Financial Market Division
Cargil Group in Thailand
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. 4
UIUVAY
nulusninNo

IAsvasivunu

13w Ay uaanziden o Wi 31 Swanan 2552 18181 400 &1uum wazyutiszudadulu 325 §runm (uandyaiuau 325,000,000 Hu
Hyarnna1d%uay 1.00 un)

Noauu
o4 Suil 31 funnAu 2552 Ui Afteulvg) Ae gled iadideu Taane ARauAzngy Tetudndoulenay 83.27 Inediaazidun
natiatussil
aeufl  seda AUIUNY (VW)  Sama
1 UOB-KAY HIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED uazngs 270,621,100 83.27
2 Tnawan Taana wNUUa a1im (W) 14,112,000 4.34
3 welanu AnsWugwailasd 8,005,300 2.46
4 SOMERS (U.K.) LIMITED 5,067,900 1.56
5  CITIBANK INTERNATIONAL PLC (LUXEMBOURG BRANCH) UBS LUXEMBOURG S.A. 2,529,500 0.78
6  wEvlnaduinens anin 1,457,200 0.45
7 welseang gANIRuE 1,049,100 0.32
8 wwanlnml ey 870,000 0.27
9 weandns anisazlsa 803,400 0.25
10 wauaae qus 703,000 0.22
11 UNGINA ANRUT 635,000 0.20
12 wed 8ad 550,000 0.17
13 wenly Tewdn 505,000 0.16
14 weqTu aNLnasT 500,000 0.15
15 wefeasIn goumngrdeuu 500,000 0.15
16 WiEasg)) AUREIRLS 460,000 0.14
17 WI0AWII AR 406,900 0.13
18 WEAdns ArnaRmIAa 400,000 0.12
19 wedidas Ayluniade 395,400 0.12
20 wAwAuRA e 331,600 0.10
99N 309,902,400 95.35
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aeuf  s1ade ﬁﬂmuﬁuﬁﬁﬂ (Y1) Sasa
1 glusin Tavasid wues axsin 285,537,809 39.40
2 y.le.. laaie Al 115,238,976 15.90
3 Ateg TWRNE (lnsian) AN 38,535,540 5.32
4 WA 2 Ran 29,893,381 4.12
5 ylodl iadideu lwsion aLGA 28,596,000 3.95
6 waeatd (RalUS) TR Twsnn aRda 27,648,348 3.82
7 gludin Tawefaduuad Tuliid 22,051,300 3.04
8 Faued AT Realuf Tnsiom Afia 15,157,967 2.09
9 wuad e T TWRTd Tnsian e 10,000,000 1.38
10 10307 AT Realdf Insian dlllAn 8,313,850 1.15
11 %u“’] 143,735,838 19.83
TN 724,709,009 100.00
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Profitability Ratio

Gross Profit Margin (%) 90.45 90.40 93.22
Net Profit Margin (%) 24.44 20.67 33.22
Return On Equity (%) 6.40 5.08 10.95
Return On Investment* (%) - - 14.50

Efficiency Ratio

Return On Asset (%) 5.42 415 7.07

Asset Turnover (times) 0.22 0.20 0.21

Financial Ratio

Liquid Asset / Total Asset (%) 61.31 79.33 33.77
Earned Asset / Total Asset (%) 27.91 13.82 49.60
Liabilities / Equity (times) 0.23 0.13 0.32
Dividend PayOut (%) 22.22 20.37 19.05
Other Ratio

Investment / Asset (%) 0.16 - 0.35
NCR (Calculated by SEC’s Regulations) (%) 479.09 845.93 377.4
Book Value Per Share (Baht) 5.64 5.35 5.19
Book Value Per Share (Fully Diluted) (Baht) 5.64 5.35 5.19

*Return on Investment calculated from dividend/investment
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BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

Name - Last name Mr. Wee Ee-chao
Position Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Executive Committee and Authorised Director
Age 55 years
Education Bachelor Degree of Business Administration The American University of Washington D.C.
% of shareholding 017
Last 5 years experience 2001 - present Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Executive
Committee and Authorised Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
1981 - present Managing Director, UOB Kay Hian Private Limited, Singapore
1976 - present Managing Director, Kheng Leong Company Limited, Singapore
Name - Last name Mr. Viroj Tangjetanaporn
Position Chairman of Audit Committee and Independent Director
Age 48 years
Education Bachelor Degree of Finance University of New South Wales, Australia
Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I10D)

Certificate of Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) Class of 30", 2004
Certificate of Audit Committee Programme (ACP) Class of 4", 2005

% of shareholding 0.09
Last 5 years experience March 8, 2007 - Present Chairman of Audit Committee and Independent Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
2005 — March 7, 2007 Audit Committee Member and Independent Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Jul 2005 - Present Director, Econolodge Company Limited
Dec 2003 - Oct 2004 President, TCC Land Company Limited
Dec 2000 - Dec 2003 CEO, Amarin Plaza Public Company Limited
Jun 1998 - Oct 2000 Managing Director, Cerberus Partners Company Limited
1997 - 1998 Vice President SG Asia (Singapore)
1989 - 1996 Country Treasurer / Head of Financial Market Division

Cargill Group in Thailand
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Name - Last name Mr. Somchat Chinthammit

Position Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

Age 52 years

Education Master Degree of Business Administration (Marketing) / Thammasat University

Master Degree of Business Administration (Marketing) / Chulalongkorn University

Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) Class of 17", 2004
Certificate of Director Certification Programme (DCP) Class of 55" 2005
Certificate of Audit Committee Programme (ACP) Class of 8", 2005

% of shareholding 0.05
Last 5 years experience 2005 - present Audit Committee Member and Independent Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

2003 - present Managing Director, Top Blend International Company Limited
1988 - present Deputy Managing Director, Bangkok Inter Food Company Limited
1988 - present Managing Director, Thai Flour Industry Company Limited

Name - Last name Mr. Loh Poh Weng

Position Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

Age 68 years

Education Master Degree of Business Administration
University of Dubuque

Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Certification Programme (DCP) Class of 57" 2005

% of shareholding -

Last 5 years experience March 8, 2007 - Present  Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Apr 2006 —March 7,2007  Consultant and Non-Authorised Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Sep 2004 - Mar 2006 Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and

Authorised Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

May 2003 - Aug 2004 Director and Chief Operating Officer
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
Oct 2001 - Apr 2003 Director and Chief Operating Officer
Kim Eng Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Jul - Sep 2001 Advisor, Vickers Ballas Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
Nov 2000 - Jul 2001 President and Authorised Director

Vickers Ballas Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
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Name - Last name

Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum

Position Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised Director
Age 46 years

Education Master Degree of Business Administration University of Laverne

Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) Class of 21", 2004

% of shareholding

Last 5 years experience

Sep 2004 - present Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised
Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
May 2003 - Aug 2004 Managing Director of Retail Business
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
2001 - 2003 Head of Retail Sales
DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited

Name - Last name

Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy

Position Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised Director
Age 46 years

Education Master Degree of Business Administration University of Warwick

Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) Class of 57" 2006
Certificate of Director Certification Programme (DCP) Class of 78" 2006

% of shareholding

0.02

Last 5 years experience

Apr 2006 - present Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised
Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Sep 2004 - Mar 2006 Executive Vice President of Investment Banking
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Jan 2001 - Sep 2004 Senior Vice President of Risk Management
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
May 1998 - Dec 2000 Financial Consultant
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Name - Last name

Mr. Teo Kim Meng

Position Independent Director
Age 62 years
Education Bachelor Degree of Science University of Singapore
% of shareholding 0.04
Last 5 years experience Aug 2009 - present Independent Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
2001 — Jul 2009 Director, Executive Director and Authorised Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
2001 — Jul 2009 Director of Regional Credit Dept. (notas amember of Board of Directors)
UOB Kay Hian Private Limited, Singapore
Aug 2000 - present Director (Financial & Management Advisory)
Asia Select Capital Private Limited, Singapore
Jul 1990 - 2000 Chief Representative, Vickers Ballas (Thailand) Company Limited
Jul 1990 - 2000 Senior Vice President
Vickers Ballas & Company Private Limited, Singapore
Jul 1990 - 2000 Director, Vickers Ballas Investment Management (Hong Kong)
Jul 1990 - 2000 Investment Manager

Vickers Ballas Holdings (Singapore) Company Limited

Name - Last name

Mr. Tan Chek Teck

Position Director, Executive Director and Authorised Director

Age 54 years

Education Bachelor of Business and Accounting (Honours) University of Edinburgh

% of shareholding 0.07

Last 5 years experience 2005 - present Director, Executive Director and Authorised Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Apr 2002 - present Executive Director, UOB Kay Hian Private Limited, Singapore
Jun 1990 - Apr 2002 General Manager, OUB Securities Private Limited, Singapore
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN UOBKayHian

Throughout the year of 2009, Thailand stock market rose continuously in respond to improved economic data. This was in line with the

recovery of global economy, which was a result of the economic stimulus plans by countries around the world.

SET index closed at 431.50 points in the first quarter of 2009, down by 4% from year-end of 2008, as investors were still concerned about
the global economic slump and oil prices. However, the implementation of economic stimulus policies from several countries including
Thailand in the late first quarter has effectively boosted the Thai economy. The economic indicators in Thailand showed a good sign
of recovery in the second quarter and certainly brought back investor confidence. During the second quarter, SET index began to rise
in spite of the political uncertainties. As a result, the index closed at 597.48 points at the end of the second quarter, up 33% from the
previous quarter. The effect of relaxed financial policies, the extension of the governmental policy in alleviating public cost of living, the
governmental loan program, and a number of global economic upturns continued to support the SET index in the third quarter of 2009.
At the end of the third quarter, SET index increased to 717.07 points or by 20% compared to the previous quarter. Nevertheless, the
court injunction issued by administrative court, which temporarily suspended 76 investment projects in Map Ta Phut in the forth quarter,
coupled with concerns over the impact of the debt repayment postponement by Dubai World caused investors to gradually sell off their
stocks for profit before reaccumulating stocks in December, due to positive expectations on the global economic growth in 2010 and
tax benefits from RMF and LTF funds. Consequently, SET index closed at 734.54 points on December 30, 2009, increased by 63% from
year-end of 2008.

The Company’s performance in 2009 improved from the previous year due to two major reasons. First, the average trading volume
increased from Baht 16,118 million per day to Baht 18,226 million per day. Second, our market share was also up to 2.00 %, increased
from 1.67% in the previous year. The Company’s total revenue in 2009 equals to Baht 467.35 million, increased 11% from the year 2008.
This was a result of higher revenue from brokerage fees, which increased to Baht 427.31 million, compared to Baht 331 million in the
previous year. In sum, the Company net profit for year 2009 was Baht 114.24 million, earnings per share was Baht 0.35 and subject to

shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting, the Company expects to pay a final dividend of Baht 0.07 per share.

We expect political developments in Thailand to have a significant effect on investor confidence and volatility of the stock market in
2010. Despite improving economic conditions and the liberalization of commission fee for stock trading using sliding scale for the first
year, the Company will continue to focus on business growth along with adherence to good corporate governance. We are committed
to developing our business in Thailand. To expand our customer bases, the Company will emphasize on internet trading, online services
and also derivatives trading, which are foreseen as high potential in the market by the Company. The Company had towards the end
of 2009 entered into an agreement to acquire the stockbroking business of Merchant Partners Securities to expand its sales and client
base. Moreover, the Company has implemented security system as well as improved quality of online services as to ensure our customer

confidentiality.
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN UOBKayHian

The Company continues to have a policy that continues to improve our research paper quality. We strive to provide comprehensive
analysis of companies listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and to increase speed in delivering useful information to our investors
from our experienced analysts in the field. Together with our marketing teams and regional support network in both our domestic and the
Group’s international, including London and New York branches, we are very confident to deliver premium service to both foreign and

domestic clients.

In closing, on behalf of the Board of Directors of UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited, | would like to thank all our
shareholders and customers for their continued trust and support to our company. | am also grateful for our management team and
employees for their dedications that have brought success to our company, and finally | am looking forward to their continuing

dedication in driving the Company forward to greater success.

{.

Mr. WEE EE-CHAO
Chairman
March, 2010
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Head Office and

Your Trusted

Branch Offices |, 7 '
Y, Brokering
Branch Telephone Address
Head Office 0-2659-8000 130 - 132 Sindhorn Bldg. Tower 1, 3 FIr., Tower 3, 15", 19", and 22" FIr. Wireless Rd., Lumpini,
Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330
Ban Pong 032-201-105 266, 268, Songpol Rd., Ban Pong, Ban Pong, Ratchaburi 70110
Suphanburi 035-503-193-5 195/3, Nen-Gaew Rd., Tharahud, Muang, Supanburi 72000
Potharam 032-355-371-4 15,17, Na-amphur Rd., Potharam, Potharam, Ratchaburi 70120
Yaowaraj 0-2622-8787 308, 18" Fir., Kanchanadhat Bldg., Yaowaraj Rd., Chakkawat, Sampantawong, Bangkok 10100
Chiang Mai 053-284-444 144, Ragang Rd., Changklan, Muang, Chiang Mai 50100
Saraburi 036-231-199 57/5, 2™ Flr., Taweekij Complex, Sudbantad Rd., Parkpeo, Muang, Saraburi 18000
Hat Yai 074-354-423-9 257/10-11, Nipat Uthit 1 Rd., Hat Yai, Hat Yai, Songkhla 90110
Bangkapi 0-2734-2414 9, 4" FIr., Happyland Plaza 1, Ladprao Rd., Klongchan, Bangkapi, Bangkok 10240
Bangkae 0-2801-9600 275, The Mall Bangkae Branch, 7" FIr., Moo 1, Petchkasem Rd., North Bangkhae, Bangkae,
Bangkok 10160
Rangsit 0-2992-7272 99, Moo 8, Zeer Rangsit, G 42 Room, Phaholyothin Rd., Lamlukka, Phathumthani 12130
References

Dr. Suphamit Techamontrikul

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)

No. 3356

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co., Ltd

Legal Consultant
» Dherakupt Consultant Co., Ltd.
» Thatpong Sakulkoo Law

Office Co., Ltd.

Share Registrar

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Niti Jungnitnirundr

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)

No. 3809

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co., Ltd

Mr. Permsak Wongpatcharapakorn

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)

No. 3427

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co., Ltd
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TYPE OF

BUSINESS

» Securities Brokerage

UOBKHST’s main source of income is from brokerage, the amount of which is approximately 85% of the total. With a branch network
of 10 across the country, the Company has managed to maintain a substantial retail client base. The institutional business has
benefited from the group’s continual effort to broaden the client base to include non-Asian clients in US and Europe. On average

80% of the trades are from individuals, making the Company one of the significant retail players in the country.

» Underwriting

The Company is an active participant in underwriting securities of issuing companies which are to be listed.

* Wealth Management

The service includes offering advice on asset allocation and the promotion of unit trusts as long term investment.
» Derivatives Business

The Company has been granted derivatives license to act as derivatives agent from the Stock Exchange Committee (SEC), a membership

from Thailand Futures Exchange (TFEX) and Thailand Clearing House (TCH) to begin derivatives business on March 24, 2008.

The Company policy and measures are in accordance with SEC rules and regulations as well as, those imposed by TFEX and TCH.

According to The Company’ risk policy Cash is the only form of collateral accepted.

Revenue Structure

Revenue (Baht Million) 2009 2008 2007
% % %

Brokerage fees from securities business 419.92 89.85 326.49 77.64 445.63 83.61
Brokerage fees from derivatives business 7.38 1.58 4.97 1.18 - -
Fees and service income 0.58 0.12 3.35 0.80 2.20 0.41
Loss on trading in securities (2.14) (0.46) (0.32) (0.08) (2.01) (0.38)
Loss on trading in derivatives (0.02) (0.01) (0.04) (0.01) - -
Interest and dividend 25.09 5.37 43.72 10.40 49.90 9.36
Interest on margin loans 15.53 3.32 39.68 9.44 35.51 6.66
Other income 1.01 0.22 2.68 0.64 1.76 0.34
Total revenues 467.35 100.00 420.53 100.00 532.99 100.00
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Market Overview

and Competition

Market overview 2009

SET index closed at 734.54 points at the end of 2009 which skyrocketed 63% from previous year and average daily trading value was
Baht 18,226 million increasing 13% from the value of last year at Baht 16,118 million. Moreover, foreign investors turned into net buyers
worth Baht 38,013 million whereas the net sell value in prior year was enormous at Baht 162,357 million. SET index movement in each
quarter was described below.

In 1% quarter 2009, SET index closed at 431.50 points, decreased 4% from year end 2008 and the bottom of this quarter at 408.78
points was the lowest level of SET index in 2009. Furthermore, average daily trading value was thinning to Baht 8,851 million and foreign
investors were net sellers worth Baht 5,594 million owing to terrible economic news especially forecast data from IMF that subprime
losses in U.S. would be gigantic to the amount of Dollar 2.2 trillion, higher than the previous forecast which was Dollar 1.4 trillion and
crude oil price continued to decline.

In 2™ quarter 2009, SET index closed at 597.48 points, surged 33% from prior quarter as foreign investors turned into net buyers totaled
Baht 25,722 million and average daily trading value climbed to Baht 21,725 million supported by economic stimulus packages of
worldwide countries which resulted in gradually improving economic data since 2™ quarter 2009, although investor confidence on the
government stability was shaken by the collapse of ASEAN summit in Pattaya.

In 3 quarter 2009, SET index closed at 717.07 points, average daily trading value continuously increased 20% at Baht 21,789 million
which was slightly different from that of last quarter, thanks to ease on monetary policy and extension of government measures to
reduce living costs apart from the fiscal stimulus package worth Baht 800 billion. Moreover, global economic data showed positive
development.

In 4" quarter 2009, SET index closed at 734.54 points, rose by another 2% from previous quarter and the peak at 758.55 points was the
2009 highest level of SET index. However, average daily trading value decreased slightly to Baht 20,614 million and foreign investors
turned to be net sellers worth Baht 17,092 million because of the suspension of 76 projects in Map Ta Phut Industrial estate, the
dissemination of rumor about national instability and worry over Dubai world’s debt crisis. Those three incidents made SET index tumbled
during late October 2009 after it had reached the peak. Nevertheless, investors started to accumulate stocks again in December 2009

thanks to optimism of a global economic recovery in 2010 and tax saving from RMF and LTF investment.

Trading value by investor type

Year 2009 Buy value Sell value Net buy(sell) value
(Btm) % (Btm) % (Btm)
Local institutions 293,928.91 6.63 296,400.75 6.69 (2,471.84)
Proprietary trading 573,211.80 12.94 571,725.70 12.91 1,486.10
Foreign investors 879,884.89 19.87 841,872.08 19.01 38,012.81
Local investors 2,681,953.58 60.56 2,718,980.65 61.39 (37,027.07)
Total 4,428,979.18 100.00 4,428,979.18 100.00 -

Source: SETSMART
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Derivatives market in 2009

Average daily trading volume for derivatives business in year 2009 has increased by 44.5% from 2008, number of contracts has gone up
to 12,771 contracts per day; break down as follows, SET50 Index Futures 10,391 contracts, Single Stock Futures 600 contracts, SET50
Index Options 393 contracts, and Gold Futures 1,397 contracts, while the average daily trading volume in 2008 was 8,837 contracts
(SET50 Index Futures 8,498 contracts, Single Stock Futures 154 contracts and SET50 Index Options 185 contracts per day). Average
daily trading value for year 2009 has increased by 46.6% from Baht 3,881.49 million to Baht 5,588.62 million. As of 30 December 2009,
open interest position totaled 28,281 contracts. Meanwhile, the derivatives trading accounts have increased by 86.5% from the end of
2008 to 29,647 accounts at the end of 2009.

The increase of average daily trading volume last year was due to strong demand for speculation and risk management activities whilst
the stock market had continued to show signs of revival along the year. In addition, the launch of two new products, namely Gold Futures
in February and 11 Single Stock Futures in June, has improved product variety and market size for derivatives market. Especially, Gold
Futures was able to attract attention from investors as a consequence of the rising gold price throughout the year 2009. Additionally,

in 2009, TFEX accepted five more gold-related agents in order to add more trading channels for investors.

In 2010, there should be further growth for derivatives business due to new products that will be introduced by TFEX within this year,
namely Interest Rate Futures and Mini Gold Futures. In addition to product variety, TFEX is continuing to encourage more convenient
facilities and relax regulations for both domestic and international institutional investors. As a result, TFEX anticipates an average daily

trading volume of 15,000 contracts per day in 2010, 15%-20% growth from year 2009.

Industry environment and market competition
Industry competition in 2009 was very intense. There were several merger deals done. In addition, each company continue to expand
its business to include derivatives trading broker, selling agent of mutual fund and issuing derivative products to diversify equity

brokerage revenue.

Overall, fierce competition would continue during 2010 owing to liberalization of commission fee for stock trading using sliding scale

whereas trading value would be volatile along the year because of political instability, although economic situation should improve.

Amidst such competitive environment, the company is well prepared to offer better services in trading and enhance employee skill

through knowledge transfer from affiliated companies via service agreement which will increase attractiveness of the company.

Top 5 market share of brokerage firms compared with UOBKHST
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¢ Market share of UOBKH
Total market value 2009 2008 2007 2006

(unit : million baht)

SET 8,857,958 7,962,460 8,543,640 7,967,352
The company 172,849 132,677 180,875 200,170
Company’s market share (%) 2.00 1.67 212 2.51
Rank 22 24 22 20
Trading value account
- Cash account 124,390 101,448 129,295 160,394
Cash account - Internet 17,477 8,537 7,848 4,006
- Credit balance account 30,836 22,691 43,732 35,770
Credit balance account - Internet 147 - - -
- Error Portfolio 362 202

* Industry prospect

Market trading value in 2010 would fluctuate along the year owing to political uncertainty although global economy has recovered. In
addition, the first year of liberalization of commission fee for stock trading using sliding scale would increase the degree of competition
in industry which will result in more mergers between brokers. Besides, providing variety of financial services apart from doing equity

brokerage business would be essential to improve service quality and increase competitiveness.

In order to reach business objectives under the environment above, the company aims to improve and efficiently utilize existing assets
together with more stringent risk control and monitoring. Moreover, the company will continue to seek the opportunity to acquire other
brokerage firm to strengthen business after having completed brokerage business transfer from Merchant Partner on 16th December
2009.

Under severe competition, the company still focus on improving research quality and providing service varieties to serve clients. In
addition, other factors which would support company’s leading position in brokerage business are internet trading service and derivative

trading service as the company has developed a platform and enhance employee skills to provide better services to clients.

The company will continue our business philosophy as “Your trusted brokering partner” with good corporate governance, professionalism

and high quality management together with knowledgeable and well-disciplined staffs.
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RISK FACTORS

« Exposure to volatility of the market

Brokerage fee is the Company’s core revenue and the amount earned is dependent on the market volume traded on the stock exchange
as well as the Company’s market share. Investors’ confidence is the most critical factor that will affect the performance of the stock
market. As a result, if the socio-political and economic outlook for the country is unstable and investors feel less confident that investing

in the stock market will generate healthy returns, the trading volume for the market is unlikely to grow.

» Competition within the industry

The industry is highly competitive. To compete for market share, each company will strive to raise service quality. In this regard, the
Company has made attempts to improve on Client Relationship Management (CRM) by providing value added services to clients
while making sure that the level of service-mindedness of its staff is of a high quality. The Company places emphasis on improving its

information technology system so that client’s request can be respond in a timely manner.

* Risk from default payment

The Company controls such risk by closely assessing the credit worthiness of the client before approving the credit limit. Apart from
that, the Company also conducts regular credit review to make sure that the client’s financial standing fully supports the limit granted.
To mitigate risk from default payment, the Company requires some clients to deposit an amount of collateral which is higher than what
is required officially. The Company has a policy to monitor and reduce the exposure to highly volatile stocks. As for the shares which
the Company is prepared to finance for margin trading, the Company carefully evaluates the performance of each stock based on the

underlying fundamentals and liquidity before granting approval as marginable.

* Risk from system failure
The Company has implemented strict procedure on backup of essential data. The Company also performs regular checks of the

communication links to prevent disruption to business operations.

* Major shareholders’ influence on management

As of December 31, 2009, UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited is the major shareholder of the Company, holding 83.27% of the total shares
issued. As a result, UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited could cast the deciding vote on matters concerning appointment of the directors;
other resolutions which require at least 75% of the voting rights at shareholders’ meetings and have influence over the management of
the Company and business policies. To ensure check and balance, the Company has three independent directors on the Board as well

as 3 of 4 independent directors who are audit committee members.

* Reliance on UOB Kay Hian Group

Through the Service Agreement, UOB Kay Hian Group has assisted the Company in business development. As part of the Group,
the Company also benefits from referral business by some of the member companies. The Company is also an affiliate of the United
Overseas Bank which has a subsidiary in UOB Bank (Thai). The Company and UOB Bank (Thai) has jointly developed a cross selling
programme on expansion of brokerage service and has since gained wide acceptance among the bank clients. To minimise such risk,

the Company has initiated a firm-wide systematic approach to achieve diversification of client base.
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* Risk from underwriting

In the event that the securities that the Company underwrote are not fully subscribed, the Company may face loss if the price subsequently
traded on the stock market is below the initial offering price. To reduce such risk, the Company would perform an analysis on the
fundamental of the issuing company as well as the industry in which the issuer operates. The Company would also assess the demand

for clients for the securities of the issuing company before finalising the underwriting portion.

» Risk associated with human resource

The securities brokerage business requires highly experienced personnel especially in the field of marketing. As a result, there will
always be competition for highly qualified marketing officers. Against such backdrop, the Company has developed a clear policy where
marketing officers will be properly compensated in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SET. Besides compensation, the

Company provides training to improve product knowledge of the marketing officers so that they can serve clients better.

» Derivatives Risk
The Company has a strict credit policy when comes to assessing client credit limit, while derivatives trading only accept cash as

collateral, it is affirmative that risk is under control.

« Client concentration

The trading volume generated by the Company’s top ten client was 21.08% in 2008 and 20.46% in 2009. The Company is aware of
such high rate of dependency and has plans to broaden the client base. In this regard, the Company actively participates in road shows
organised by the SET in order to attract retail clients. Apart from that, the Company has positioned internet trading as one of the channels

to increase retail client base.

» Risk associated with the operating a business under a regulated environment
Any amendment of rules and regulations will have an impact on the operations of the Company. One of these issues is the upcoming
liberalisation of the securities business. The Company is well aware of the negative effect that such rules and regulations will have on the

overall performance of the Company and has adopted cost control measures as part of the attempt to sustain profit growth.

The Company also places emphasis on proper staffing of the Compliance unit so that marketing officers can be notified as regards the

rules and regulations and any amendment which the authority may introduce.

LEGAL DISPUTE

As of December 31, 2009 the Company has no outstanding legal cases whose claim amount would exceed 5 % of shareholders’ equities

or significantly affects the operation of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a policy to pay dividend at the approximate rate of 20% of net profit after deducting legal reserve. The payment is

subject to the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.
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CAPITAL

STUCTURE

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has registered capital of Baht 400 million with paid-up capital of Baht 325 million which equals

to 325,000,000 shares of Baht 1.00 each.

Shareholders

As of December 31, 2009, major shareholder is UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited holding 83.27% with details as follow:

No. Name No. of Shares %
1. UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited and group 270,621,100 83.27
2. Globlex Holding Management Public Company Limited 14,112,000 4.34
3. Mr. Sophon Mitrphunphanich 8,005,300 2.46
4, Somers (U.K.) Limited 5,067,900 1.56
5. Citibank International PLC (Luxembourg Branch)- UBS Luxembourg S.A. 2,529,500 0.78
6. Thai NVDR Limited 1,457,200 0.45
7. Mr. Prapas Chutimaworaphun 1,049,100 0.32
8. Mr. Sompost Arhunai 870,000 0.27
9. Mr. Somsak Jitpiriyaroj 803,400 0.25
10. Mr. Sangchai Wasunthara 703,000 0.22
11. Mr. Surang Supphapun 635,000 0.20
12. Mr. Wee Ee-chao 550,000 017
13. Mr. Nut Oatthees 505,000 0.16
14. Mr. Suchon Simakultorn 500,000 0.15
15. Mr. Rangsan Aunhasutthiyanon 500,000 0.15
16. Mr. Jedsada Tangpeanpun 460,000 0.14
17. Mr. Waleepun Srirubsuk 406,900 0.13
18. Mr. Wisit Phisalkunakij 400,000 0.12
19. Mr. Wichien Srimuninnimit 395,400 0.12
20. Mr. Somkiat Kuaekoonphitak 331,600 0.10

Total 309,902,400 95.35
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As of December 31, 2009, UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited was the Company’s major shareholder and has a registered capital of S$100 million (S$ 0.10 each)
of which S$72.47 million or 724,709,009 of shares have been paid up.

The shareholding structure of UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited is as follows:

No. Name No. of Shares %
1. United Overseas Bank Limited 285,537,809 39.40
2. U.I.P. Holding Limited 115,238,976 15.90
3. DBS Nominees Pte Limited 38,635,540 5.32
4. Tang Wee Loke 29,893,381 412
5. UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd 28,596,000 3.95
0. HSBC (Singapore) Noms Pte Ltd 27,648,348 3.82
7. United Overseas Bank Nominees 22,051,300 3.04
8. Citibank Noms S’pore Pte Ltd 15,157,967 2.09
9. Bank of China Nominees Pte Ltd 10,000,000 1.38
10. OCBC Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 8,313,850 1.15
11. Others 143,735,838 19.83

Total 724,709,009 100.00
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MANAGEMENT

STRUCTURE

The Company has a variety of committees; such as board of directors, executive committee and audit committee, which each of them
is comprised of competent individual in accordance with the Section 68 of the Public Company Acts B.E. 2535 and also in accordance
with the Announcement of the Securities and Stock Exchange Commission Thor Jor 28/2551 regarding the Application for Permission
and Approval for Issuance of New Shares. Details of structure are as follow:

Board of Directors

As of December 31, 2009 there are 8 members on the Board as follows:

No. Name Position

1. Mr. Wee Ee-chao Chairman of the Board

2. Mr. Viroj Tangjetanaporn Chairperson of Audit Committee and Independent Director
3. Mr. Somchat Chinthammit Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

4. Mr. Loh Poh Weng Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

5. Mr. Teo Kim Meng Independent Director

6. Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum Director

7. Mr. Tan Chek Teck Director

8. Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy Director

Mrs. Prompuk Karoonworawong is the Company Secretary

Authorised Directors
The Company’s Authorised Directors are Mr. Wee Ee-chao, Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum , Mr. Tan Chek Teck and Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck
Choy. The signature of any two Authorised Directors shall be required to bind the Company.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

» To perform duties in line with the relevant Thai law, the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and resolutions of the
shareholders’ meeting.

» To review and approve the strategic direction, objectives and policies for the Company’s business in accordance to the Stock
Exchange of Thailand’s rules and regulation. On such matters as capital increase, capital reduction, bond issuance, partial or total
asset disposal to other party, acquisition or acceptance of any business transferred from other company, as well as alteration
of company affidavit and/or and enforcements, and the directors premiums and fees, the Company need to seek consent from
shareholder meeting.

« To appoint directors and/or executives, as deemed appropriate, as members of the various committees to ensure effectiveness in
managing the affairs of the Company.

Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Board of Directors holds regular quarterly meetings. The notice which will notify the date, time and venue, agenda including
supporting documents will be sent well in advance to ensure directors have sufficient time to review the content of the documents. The
minutes of the meeting will be recorded and properly filed for inspection from related parties.
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In 2009, there were altogether 6 Board of Directors meeting, in 2008, there were altogether 5 Board of Directors meeting, the same

number of meeting as in 2007, with the following attendance records:

Mall Snre all tables are the same

Name No. of Participation/total no. of meeting

2009 2008 2007
Mr. Wee Ee-chao 1/6 1/5 2/5
Mr. Viroj Tangjetanaporn 6/6 4/5 5/5
Mr. Somchat Chinthammit 5/6 5/5 5/5
Mr. Loh Poh Weng 6/6 4/5 5/5
Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum 6/6 5/5 5/5
Mr. Teo Kim Meng 3/6 4/5 2/5
Mr. Tan Chek Teck 4/6 2/5 4/5
Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy 6/6 5/5 5/5

Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2009 the Audit Committee comprises 3 members:

No. Name
1. Mr. Viroj Tungjetanaporn
2. Mr. Somchat Chinthammit
3. Mr. Loh Poh Weng

Chairman of Audit Committee

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee’s scopes of role and responsibility are assigned by the Board of Directors, including reporting to the Board of Directors

as follows:

To review the accuracy and adequacy of information disclosure of the Company’s financial statements by cooperating with the

external auditor;

To review the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal control system;

To review that the Company’s operations conforms with the relevant rules and regulations such as the Securities and Exchange Act,

regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand etc;

To consider and approve the appointment and remuneration of the Company’s external auditor;

To consider the adequacy of information disclosure for related party transactions or transactions that could lead to conflict of interest;

To prepare an Audit Committee report which is to be part of the Company’s annual report. The report will elaborate on the following:

Opinion on the accuracy, completeness and reliability of the financial statements;

Opinion on the adequacy of the internal control system;

Opinion on the proposed appointment of the external auditors;

Opinion on the Company’s compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act and other governing laws;

Any other reports that the shareholders and general investors should be informed of under the scopes of duties and

responsibilities as delegated by the Board of Directors;

Opinion on the cooperation or resistance demonstrated by employees and management in performing the duties of a member

of the Audit Committee;

To perform any other assignments as the Board of Directors and Audit Committee see fit.
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Sovereignty of Independent Directors

The qualification of the Independent Directors must be in accordance with the notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission
No. Thor Jor. 28/2551 regarding “Application and approval for the offer or for sale of newly issued shares and relevant regulations” and
ThorThor/Nor/Khor. 87/2552 regarding “The qualification and attributes which are prohibited as an executive of the operator of futures

business” and in compliance with the qualification for audit committee members as determined by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Executive Committee

As of December 31, 2009 the Executive Committee consists of 4 members as follows:

No. Name Position
1. Mr. Wee Ee-chao Chairman of Executive Committee
2. Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum Member
3. Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy Member
4. Mr. Tan Chek Teck Member

Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive Committee

» Considering and verifying the Management Committee’s business proposal, determining goals, strategies, policies, operational plans
and annual budget before submitting for approval by the Board of Directors for approval,

» Evaluating the business performance of the Company in accordance with the goals, strategies, policies, operational plans and
annual budget as approved by the Board of Directors;

» Considering and providing advice on the following reports;
- Audit report of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC);
- Audit report of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET);
- Report of internal auditor;
- Report of compliance;
- Follow-up report;
- Business report;

+ Assessing the external and internal risks which may affect the Company’s business and providing advice on risk management policy;

» Determining and approving the remuneration of the management and employees;

« Approving the transfer, appointment and termination members of the management team who do not hold the position of Executive
Committee;

» Approving the Company’s expenditure for general business transaction and the investment amount which exceeds the approved
amount for a director;

« Approving the appointment of authorised officer to sign cheques, financial documents, securities documents etc as detailed in the
Power of Attorney;

» Considering and approving any securities dealing and underwriting by the Company;

» Considering and approving excess of client’s credit limit and other related credit matters;

» Vested with the authority to appoint a committee or a team for the benefit of achieving greater transparency in managing the affairs
of the Company, and able to sub-delegate and/ or appoint a person to handle a specific task on behalf of the Committee. However,
the sub-delegation and/ or the appointment of authority must be within the scope of the assignment and/ or in accordance to the

Company’s rules and regulations;
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* Having the authority to appoint one or more committees or other person to perform a specific task under the supervision of the
Management Committee or appoint the person to have authority as deem appropriate by the Management Committee and within the
suitable period of time. The Management Committee can revoke, terminate, amend, or replace the authorised person or the
authority delegation as appropriate;

» Performing any other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Management Committee

As of December 31, 2009 the Management Committee consists of 2 members as follows:

No. Name Position
1. Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum Chairman of Management Committee
2. Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy Member

Roles and Responsibilities of the Management Committee are as follows:

* Managing the operation in accordance with the goals, strategies, policies, operational plans and annual budget as approved by the
Board of Directors and/or the Executive Committee;

» Recommending business proposal, operational plans and annual budget to the Executive Committee for approval;

Approving the account opening for securities trading and other related business transactions including delegating any person to take

action as appropriate;

Providing advice to the heads of Finance, Settlement, Human Resource and any other departments concerning operational matters,
securities business and new business activities;

» Performing any other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors and Executive Committee;

Submitting operational reports to the Executive Committee.

Other Committee
Credit Committee

As of December 31, 2009 the Credit Committee consists of 2 members as follows:

No. Name Position
1. Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum Chairman of Credit Committee
2. Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy Member

Duties and Responsibilities of the Credit Committee are as follows:

Formulating, reviewing and implementing credit policy as approved by The Board of Directors or Executive Committee;

Approving the credit application of new account opening or increasing/ decreasing the credit limit of the existing accountin compliance

with the credit policy of the Company;

Reviewing the lists of marginable securities;

Reviewing, revising and initiating credit control measures based on information related to control issues such as late-payment records,

securities which are suspended from trading, and etc;

Submitting operational reports to the Board of Directors.
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Credit Committee must not approve any transaction that is deemed to be of conflict of interest or any transaction that is against the

interest of the Company or its subsidiaries and must disclose such transactions to the Board of Directors for consideration.

Limit for Shares Trading:

Credit Limit

Authorised Person

Up to Baht 10 million
Up to Baht 30 million
Above Baht 30 million

Head of Credit Control
Co-CEO
1 EXCO Member from Singapore

Limit for Derivatives Trading:

Credit Limit

Authorised Person

Up to Baht 10 million or Up to 200 contracts
Up to Baht 30 million or Up to 600 contracts
Above Baht 30 million or Above 600 contracts

Head of Derivatives Department
Co-CEO
1 EXCO Member from Singapore

Management

As of December 31, 2009 the list of executives is as follows:

No.  Name Position

1. Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum Co-Chief Executive Officer

2. Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy Co-Chief Executive Officer

3. Ms. Ladda Lenglerdpol EVP-Retail Business - Head Office 8
4. Miss Penprapa Decharaj EVP-Team Center 2

5. Mr. Jaratpong Pornprinya SVP- Institutional Sales

6. Mr. Kosin Sripaiboon SVP-Retail Research

7. Ms. Vimonrat Suribud SVP-Retail Business - Head Office
8. Ms. Suparak Panyathamakun SVP-Finance and Accounting

9. Mrs.Prompuk Karoonworawong SVP-Human Resource and Legal
10.  Ms. Kanda Prayoonruksa SVP-Credit Control

11.  Ms. Suvimol Kespokeaw SVP-Settlement and Custody

Roles and Responsibilities of the Co-Chief Executive Officers are as follows:

The Co-Chief Executive Officers are Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum and Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy.
* Monitoring business operations and/or executing day-to-day operations;
» Determining the goals, directions and operational plans to propose to the Executive Committee and including monitoring the

performance of the Company;

Committee;

Coordinating with the department heads and employees to comply with the rules and regulations approved by the Executive

» Supervising the Company to be in compliance with laws, rules, policies and regulations of the Company;
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Nomination of Directors and Management

The Company has no selection Committee; therefore the Nomination of Directors and Management is the subject to the following

procedures:

Board of Directors
» The Company’s Board of Directors shall consist of at least 5 persons. Board members will elect one of their members as Chairman
and Vice-Chairman and other positions as deemed appropriate. At the same time, not less than half of the directors must reside in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
» During the shareholders’ meeting, certain rules and procedures shall apply:
- Each shareholder holds the number of votes equal to the amount of shares in possession.
- Each shareholder may cast votes for each individual director or a group of directors, in case of election of a group of directors,
the vote cannot be divided among each individual in the group.
- The election of directors requires a resolution of shareholders passed by a majority vote. In case of an equality of votes, the
Chairman of the meeting must exercise a casting vote.
* In every annual ordinary meeting, at least one-third of the directors shall resign from the position. If the number of directors cannot be
divided into 3 equal portions, the closest number to that sum shall be applied. Of the 3 directors who will resign in the first and
second years after the registration of the Company, they are required to draw lots to determine who will resign in subsequent years,

beginning with the director who has the longest service years.

Audit Committee Members
The members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board of Directors or by resolution of the shareholders’ meeting; members

of the Audit Committee shall serve for a period of 3 years.

Independent Committee

According to the Board of Directors’ selection criteria, the Independent Committee is appointed in the shareholders’ meeting or the
Board of Directors’ meeting.

Remuneration for Directors

Cash Remuneration

The Company’s Board of Directors has 8 directors of which 3 are Audit Committee members, 4 is an Independent Director. Directors who
are representatives of UOB Group will only be entitled to fees as obliged in Service Agreement. The resolutions of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2009 on April 20, 2009 resolved that for each meeting attended, the chairperson of the Audit Committee
would be remunerated Baht 25,000 and each for member of the Audit Committee Baht 15,000. The chairperson and members of the
Audit Committee will be remunerated each time they participate in the meeting, be it the Board of Directors’ meeting; Audit Committee

meeting or shareholders’ meeting. In case there is more than one meeting within the day, the remuneration will be on a one-time basis.
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Directors
No. Name Remuneration (2009)
1. Mr. Wee Ee-chao -
2. Mr. Viroj Tangjetanaporn Baht 225,000
3. Mr. Somchat Chinthammit Baht 120,000
4. Mr. Loh Poh Weng Baht 120,000
5. Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum -
6. Mr. Teo Kim Meng Baht 15,000
7. Mr. Tan Chek Teck -
8. Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy -
Management

In 2007 the Company paid the total amount of Baht 25.49 million to 10 managements. In 2008 the Company paid the total amount of Baht

41.05 million to 14 managements. In 2009 the Company paid the total amount of Baht 33.17 million to 16 managements.

2 directors namely Mr. Wee Ee-chao and Mr. Tan Chek Teck were not entitled to cash remuneration, as their service rendered is part of

the Service Agreement between the Company and UOB Kay Hian Private Limited.
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CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
POLICY

The Company’s policy on corporate governance policy is based on the revised 5 principles for good corporate governance issued by

the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

1.

Rights of Shareholders

The Company recognises basic shareholders rights and encourages each shareholder to exercise their rights such as 1) buy,
sell, or transfer shares 2) share in the profit of the company 3) obtain relevant and adequate information on the Company in a
timely manner and on a regular basis 4) participate and vote in the shareholder meetings to elect or remove members of the board,
and make decisions on any transactions that affect the Company such as dividends payment, amendments to the Company’s

articles of association or the Company’s bylaws, capital increases or decreases, and the approval of extraordinary transactions etc.

The Company ensures that shareholders should be fully informed of the criteria and procedures governing shareholders meetings.
Sufficient information regarding the issues to be decided in each agenda item should be provided in advanced of the meeting.

The Company must recognize shareholders rights and avoid any actions that violate those rights.

Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

2.1 General Shareholder Meeting

* The Company recognises basic shareholders rights and will ensure that all shareholders rights are protected and that they all
get fair treatment. Each shareholder will receive adequate information on the date and time of the Annual General Meeting in
both English and Thai version. Website will be another channel for the Company to deliver information to shareholder before the
notice and agenda for the Annual General Meeting will be distributed.

» The Company will ensure that shareholders who cannot vote in person will be allowed to vote by proxy.

* The Company will encourage the use of voting cards for the sake of transparency and future reference on important agenda
items such as related party transactions, acquisitions or disposal of significant assets etc. There will be election of individual
director to ensure transparency.

* In the Annual General Shareholder Meeting, shareholder will receive opportunity and be encouraged to inspect the
Companyperformance with questions and significant issues recorded in the minutes of meeting. One representative from
group of shareholders from Singapore, one director from Audit Committee as well as related members of the management team

will attend Annual General Shareholder Meeting to answer questions from shareholders.

2.2 Use of inside information prevention

* There is written procedures concerning the use and protection of inside information. The board set procedures to prevent the use of
inside information that has not been published for abusive and self dealing. Director, management with access to the Company
financial information must not engage in trading of the Company share within one month prior to the publication of the Company

financial statement.
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» The Company has informed directors and management of their duty to report to the Company of their possession of shares

to the Stock Exchange Committee and the Stock Exchange of Thailand according to SET section 59 and penalty act section 275.

» The Company has a written policy to penalise any person who abuses inside information in ways; such as, for self-benefit or expose

information to the public in a harmful way. Penalty includes verbal warning, written warning, probation, or termination of

employment.

3. Role of Stakeholders

The Company recognises the rights of all stakeholders which include customers, management, employees, investors,

regulators and competitors. The Company will ensure that the stakeholders’ rights are protected. The Company

is committed to maintain good relationship with the various groups of stakeholders to ensure long-term success for the Company.

To Shareholder :

To Employee :

To Client :

To Competitor :

To Debtor :

To Environment

and society :

The Company is devoted to act as a representative to shareholder in managing the business to ensure

maximum satisfaction and long-term success as well as maintain transparency and trust.

The Company gives fair treatment and compensation to every employee, as well as providing safe
environment for both employee’s well-being and belonging according to labor legislation. Moreover,
the Company consistently gives employee support and encouragement to self development and

improves their skill and knowledge in their line of work.

The Company is devoted to ensure optimum satisfaction to our client by offering quality services and
responsibility. There is a designated department to handle complaint from client and proceed to find
resolution with fairness and accuracy inatimely manner. Moreover, the Company strictly ensures client’s

confidentiality, unless it must be disclosed under law enforcement.

The Company treats each competitor equally; consider fairness in conducting business in relation

to the law, agreement and restriction.

The Company assures its duty under the agreement with debtor.

The Company recognises the responsibility to environment and society and ensures that

utilisation of resources is at the maximum, employees are reminded and encouraged to be

aware of environmental and social issues and to participate in any campaign possible.

Moreover, the Company creates a secured channel for stakeholder to communicate with Board of Director on issues; such

as company financial statement, internal control, or any law and moral defining act, for further examination.

Disclosure and Transparency

The Company recognises the importance for all important information relevant to the company, both financial and non-

financial; such as, annual report, annual statement (form 56-1), to be disclosed correctly, accurately, on a timely basis and
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transparently through easy-to-access channels that are fair and trustworthy. Adequate and up-to-date information will be

disclosed on company’s website in both Thai and English version to give investor and related persons sufficient data for their decision.

Responsibilities of the Board

5.1 The Board Structure

The board of director is composed of at least 5 directors, in which at least 3 are independent director equivalent to at least
one-third of the board size. Currently, the Company has total of 8 directors on board, 4 are management, and 4 are independent

directors with a company secretary. The appointment of directors will be carried out according to company regulation and law.

The Company separates the roles and responsibilities clearly, there is no dual holding of position, chairman is responsible for

making policy decision and Co-CEO is responsible for management of the Company business.

Term to serve as director will be written in the Company regulations; each year 1 director out of 3 will leave by rotation, and

is entitled to reelection. If number of director cannot be divided into exact proportion of 3, any nearest number is acceptable.

5.2 Nomination Committee

The Company does not have the Nomination and Compensation Committee. However the election of the Directors can be
conducted by the appointment in the shareholders’ meeting to comply with the rule and procedure in Company’s
Article of Association which would take into consideration the education, experience, career expertise and the

performance of the director in his previous term. In addition, board members will elect one of their members as Chairman.

The Company has clearly set up remuneration for the directors by comparing it to the industry standard and also takes into account
company specific issues such as business expansion and profit growth. The chairperson and members of the audit
committee will be remunerated each time they participate in the meeting which is approved in the shareholder’s meeting.

However, directors who are representative of UOB Group will only be entitled to fees as obliged in Service Agreement.

5.3 Roles Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

5.3.1 The Board of Directors will determine business directions, vision, goals, policies, and budgets. The Board will also supervise
and assess the performance of the management to ensure objectives are met in order to ensure the sustainable

increasing in economic value to the Company and shareholders as well as the maximum benefit of all related parties.

5.3.2 The Board of Directors will supervise and assess the performance of the management in regard to goal and action plan
as designated. Supervise management to restrict compliance with the established rule and regulation of the government
official regulators. The Board will also establish an adequate and suitable risk management system and internal

control system to ensure the efficiency and integrity of the operation.
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5.3.3 The Board of Directors pays utmost attention to the policy of the conflict of interest for related person with carefulness
and integrity. The policy will be set up for Directors, management to disclose any stakes and interests in any contracts

entered into by the company to the Board of Directors to determine with due care and for the benefit of the Company.

5.3.4 The Board of Directors has established an internal control system for financial transaction, business operation
to ensure that all relevant transactions are in line with the law, rule and regulation together with the establishment
of written code of conduct for employees by the supervision of Internal Audit and Compliance Department which is
responsible for reviewing the operations of the Company as well as dealings of its employees to ensure that compliance with

relevant rules and regulations. The Compliance and Internal Audit Department report directly to the Audit.

5.4 Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Board of Directors holds a meeting at least once every three months. The notice which will notify the date, time and venue, agenda
including supporting documents will be sent well in advanced to ensure directors have sufficient time to review the content of the
documents. The minutes of the meeting will be recorded by the company’s secretary and properly filed for inspection from related

parties.

With absence of the Chairman of the Board, the meeting shall appoint another Director as a Chairman. The Chairman and other
executives are required to raise an agenda issue for the meeting. The Chairman is also to ensure that all relevant directors
receiving the supporting document with at least 7 days in advanced in order that they can be able to have sufficient time to review

the content of the document and provide opinion as well as casting the vote.

Chairman of the Board or any other designated person shall make a conclusion of the issue raised after providing enough time for
management and directors to discuss and express the opinion for each matter. Both Co-Chief Executive Officer are required to attend

the Board of Director’'s meeting.

Directors with stakes in any matters being considered by the board must absent themselves from the relevant board meetings. To
consider each agenda issue, the Directors are authorised to request further supporting document or seek further clarification to the
matters from the management. Furthermore, the Directors can obtain further information from the management, the company secretary
or any designated member of the management team. The resolution will be based on majority of the votes and if any director has voted

against the resolution that will be duly recorded in the minutes.

5.5 Board Self Assessment

The Board of Directors will prepare for the boards’ self performance assessment starting from the year 2009. This will be applied on

yearly basis to assess the outcome as well as any problems occur for further improvement. The assessment will also extend to the

Executive Management of the Company as a basis for consideration of their remuneration.
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5.6 Remuneration for Directors and the Management

The Company specifies clearly the rate of remuneration for the directors, and the remuneration rate has been approved in the
shareholders’ meeting. For the almost benefit of the Company, the remuneration for the management in the form of salary, bonus and

other incentives must correspond with the Company’s performance.

5.7 The Development of the Directors and the Management

The Company will promote the training and knowledge development of the relevant person such as Directors, members of the Audit
Committee, Management, and Company Secretary etc in corporate governance as part of continual improvement of the business
operations. As such, newly appointed Director will be able to receive information regarding the rule and regulation as well as the

appropriate Company’s business information before starting their duties and responsibilities as directors.

The Company has initiated a policy for Directors to attend DCP and DAP courses conducted by an Institute of Director to ensure that the
good corporate directors’ understandings of duties and responsibilities have been met. This will also include the Company Secretary
to attend the training course hosted by IOD. Apart from the training course by IOD, the Directors are encouraged to attend others

development courses.
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MISUSE OF INSIDER
INFORMATION

Prevention of the misuse of insider information

The Company established a policy on misuse of insider information by directors and the management for personal gains. Directors and
management who are in the known of the Company’s financial information are not allowed to trade the Company’s shares one month
prior to the public disclosure of such information. In case where directors and management purchase shares of the Company, they are
required to report such transactions to the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance with Section 59 of the

Securities and Exchange Act.

Penal Provision

Furthermore, The Company has issued the penal provision for those who seek for the personal benefits by using for disclosing information
which destroy the Company’s reputation. The penalty is determined as deem appropriate including verbal warning, warning, probation

and dismissal.

Internal Control

In the Board of Directors meeting no 1/2010, on February 11, 2010 in which 3 audit committee members attended, the directors
discussed with the management on adequacy of internal control in 5 areas, namely Organisation Control and Environment Risk
Management, Management Control, Information Technology and Communication and Monitoring Systems, the Board of Directors
concluded that the Company has adequate control in all of these areas. The Board of Directors was also satisfied with the Company’s

monitoring system which is capable of protecting the Company’s assets from unauthorised usage.
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Dear Shareholders

The Audit Committee of UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited comprises of 3 members from the Company’s
Board of Directors, who are experienced in finance and accounting. Each member is an independent director and is not an executive,
nor an employee, nor any advisor of the Company. The name of Audit Committee members are as follows:

Mr. Viroj Tangjetanaporn, Independent Director as Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr. Somchat Chinthammit, Independent Director as member of the Audit Committee
Mr. Loh Poh Weng, Independent Director as member of the Audit Committee

Appointed by the Company’s Board of Directors, the Audit Committee is to review financial reports and to ensure that the Company has
appropriate and efficient internal control and audit systems, as well as to perform other duties as designated by the Board of Directors
in accordance with the terms and best practices for Audit Committees by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

During 2009, the Audit Committee held 4 meetings. The meetings were held together with the Company’s management, Head of Internal
Audit, and the external auditor. The Audit Committee has performed the following duties:

1. Financial Statement: The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s quarterly financial statements and annual financial statements
for 2009, including disclosure of inter-company and related transactions. The review focused on compliance with generally accepted
accounting standards, adequacy, completeness and reliability of information disclosed.

2. Related Transactions: The Audit Committee reviewed all related transactions that may cause conflict of interest with the Company,
and found that they are reasonable, genuine, and occurred as part of normal business operation. The disclosure of related information
is complete and accurate. This is to ensure that the Company was in compliance with the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s published code
of good corporate governance.

3. Internal Control: The Audit Committee reviewed and evaluated the sufficiency of the internal control system provided by the
Compliance and Internal Audit in order to prevent and reduce potential risk. In addition, the Audit Committee has regularly followed up
with the Company’s management as well as receiving regular report from internal auditor on internal control issues. In general, the Audit
Committee is of the opinion that the Company internal control system is sufficient and appropriate for the Company’s business.

4. Compliance with rules and regulations of regulatory bodies: The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s operation to ensure
that the Company has performed its duties in accordance with all laws and regulations to which the Company must comply.

5. Selection and appointment of auditor: The Audit Committee has considered and proposed, Mr. Niti Jungnitnirundr, Certified
Public Accountant No. 3809 and/or Dr. Suphamit Techamontrikul, Certified Public Accountant No. 3356 and/or Mr. Permsak
Wongpatcharapakorn, Certified Public Accountant No. 3427 of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co., Ltd. To be the auditors of the
Company of the year 2010, any one being authorised to conduct the audit and express and opinion on the annual financial statement
of the Company. In the absence of the above-named auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co., Ltd. is authorised to identify
one other Certified Public Accountant with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co., Ltd. to carry out the work. Their remuneration is

no more than Baht 1,170,000 per annum.
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In conclusion, the Audit Committee has reviewed and found that the Company has sufficient internal control. The related transactions,
which may cause conflict of interest with the Company, are reasonable, genuine, and part of normal business operation. Furthermore, the
Company has performed its duties in accordance with all laws and regulations to which the Company must comply. The Annual financial
statement ended December 31, 2009 is presented in all material respects and free of material misstatement. The financial statement is
correct, sufficiently disclosed, complete, and reliable according to generally accepted accounting standards.

For your kind consideration.

Lo 2t

Mr. Viroj Tangjetanaporn

Chairman of the Audit Committee

In the name of the Audit Committee of
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Pcl.

Annual Report 2009 1 13



UOBKayHian

INTER-RELATED

TRANSACTION

1. Savings, interest income and Accrued Interest Income

Transaction Value (unit:Baht)

Necessity and

Persons/Companies 2009 2008 T
. . ] Justification of
with potential conflict Accrued Accrued
) Related
of interests Savings Interest Income | Interest Savings Interest Income | Interest T .
ransaction
Income Income
1. United Overseas Audit Committee
Bank (Thai) Plc. 129,720,032.77 |  677,626.05 - 64,692,383.07 | 1,515,746.49 - has reviewed and

concluded that
they are normal
transactions with
the same interest
rate that the Bank
offered to other

clients.
Types of connected party transactions: The Company has funds deposited in current and saving accounts
2. Company’s deposits on behalf of customers
Persons/Companies with potential Transaction Value (unit:Baht) Necessity and Justification of
conflict of interests 2009 2008 Related Transaction
2.1 UOB Kay Hian Private Limited 378,355,845.51 94,014.54 Audit Committee has reviewed

and concluded that they are
normal transactions.

2.2 UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) 12,144,879.22 89,426.02
Limited -Client a/c

Types of connected party transactions: Cash deposited by UOB Kay Hian Private Limited and UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited —
Client a/c for share settlement purpose. The amount of cash is deposited with a local bank.
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3. Brokerage fees

Transaction Value (unit:Baht)

Persons/Companies with potential Necessity and Justification of Related

2009 2008
conflict of interests Transaction
Brokerage fees Brokerage fees
3.1 UOB Kay Hian Private Limited 48,104,654.77 31,162,499.13 Audit Committee has reviewed and
As of Dec 31, 09 As of Dec 31, 08 concluded that the transactions were

Receivables 5,106,814.31 | Receivables 2,520,376.25 | part of normal business transactions
Payables 31,560,962.23 Payables 24,714,097.73 | with the fees fixed at 0.25% which
was the same rate as offered to other
3.2 UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) 23,902,944 .51 15,437,159.85 clients. The committee concluded
Limited -Client a/c As of Dec 31, 09 As of Dec 31, 08 that the transaction were reasonable.
Receivables 59,572,473.87 |Receivables 26,910,262.86
Payables 34,860,201.62 Payables 10,657,632.44

3.3 Others 15,449.89 1,396,665.93

3.4 Directors, management and - 22,222.76
related persons are as follows;

(1) Wee Ee-chao (Director)

(2) Teo Kim Meng (Director)

(3) Tan Chek Teck (Director)

(4) Loh Poh Weng
(Independent Director)

(5) Chaipat Narkmontanakum
(Management)

(6) Victor Yuen Tuck Choy
(Management)

(7) Kosin Sripaiboon
(Management)

Types of connected party transactions: The Company received brokerage fees.

Remark: As of December 31, 2008 and 2009, the related parties who have engaged in transaction listed under (3) have no outstanding
balance from share trading beyond the settlement period of T+3.
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4. Service fees and others

Persons/Companies with
potential conflict of interests

Transaction Value (unit:Baht)

2009

2008

Income Expense

Income Expense

Necessity and Justification of
Related Transaction

4.1 United Overseas Bank
(Thai) Plc.*

4.2 UOB Kay Hian (Hong
Kong) Limited -Client
A/C**

4.3 UOB Kay Hian Private
Limited ** / ***

4.4 United Overseas
Insurance (UOI) ****

= 440,615.69

4,605.86 =

37,679.91 =

- 17,486,350
Overdue fees
4,834,650

= 2,650,572.26

- 290,330.36

1,655.99 -

3,624.82 -

- 12,723,300
Overdue fees
2,778,800

- 3,034,053
Overdue fees
252,837.45

Audit Committee has reviewed
and concluded that the
transactions were part of normal
business operation with the
receipt of fees arisen from shares
transfer, from being a share
registrar and from late payment/
delivery of shares. For payment of
fees, the amount is for automatic
money transfer and cheque
clearing, which were part of
normal business operation.

Audit Committee reviewed the
transactions and concluded that
the service was beneficial to the
Company’s operation. The fee
and condition were reasonable.
The Company considered and
assessed the services before
paying the fees. The need to
renew the agreement will be
assessed and review on a yearly
basis.

Audit Committee reviewed the
premium received and protection
as stated in the assurance

policy and concluded that the
transaction was reasonable and
beneficial to the Company.
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Types of connected party transactions:

* The Company paid fees for automatic money transfer and cheques clearing.

** The Company received fees from late payment/ late deliveries of share exceeding (T+3) and share transfer.

*** The Company paid fees for the Service Agreement. Besides the fee for the Service Agreement, the Company also incurred other
expenses originated from the services provided under the agreement, such as traveling, accommodation and provision. In 2008
and 2009 the total expenses were Baht 0.5 million and Baht 0.4 million.

**** The amount is for insurance payment for Stock Broker Scheme and Director & Officer Liability with UOI to protect against damage
inflicted on securities companies within the UOB Group from negligence, misconduct of employees; theft or false documents;
malpractice by employees and computer crimes including damage which cannot be classified. The amount insured for the entire
group was S$673,520.56 and the validity of the contract was from December 1, 2008 to February 28, 2010. The yearly insurance

premium was Baht 2,650,572.26 according to the allocation, which is on number of employee’s basis.
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EXPLANATION AND '
ANALYSIS OF F - ) L

FINANCIAL STATUS
AND OPERATION

The Company generated total income of Baht 467.35 million and Baht 420.53 million for the year 2009 and 2008 respectively, with net
profit of Baht 114.24 million, and Baht 86.92 million over the corresponding period. Majority of income generated came from brokerage
fees and the Company’s market share was 2.00% in 2009 and 1.67% in 2008.

Operational Performance
Revenue

The Company’s revenue comprises of brokerage fees, service fees, profits (loss) from securities trading, interests, dividend, interest from
margin loan and other income such as fees from transferring share, fees from being a share registrar. Nevertheless, the major source of
the Company’s income is from securities brokerage. Previously, the Company’s income from brokerage fees was equivalent to 70-90%
of total income. Most of the clients were retail investors, which were equivalent to 70-85% of the Company’s securities trading value,
and the value of trade from institutional clients was 15-30% of the Company’s total. The profit (loss) registered in the Company’s trading
account was a result of trade error and did not originate from the Company’s investment of its own capital.

In 2009, the Company’s total revenue reached Baht 467.35 million, increased by 11.13% compared to the previous year's amount. The
improvement was encouraged by the government stimulus package.

* Revenue from Brokerage Fees

Revenue from brokerage fees is directly related to the overall trading value in the stock exchange, and in turn is attracted by market
conditions and other factors.

In 2009, the Company’s earned income from brokerage fees was equivalent to Baht 427.31 million, increased by 29.35% compared to
that of previous year because of better political and economic situation. The Company’s average daily trading value was Baht 711 million
and the SET’s average daily trading value was Baht 17,854 million.

Company’s Performance 2009 2008 2007
UOBKHST’s trading value (Baht million) 172,849 132,677 180,875
UOBKHST'’s market share 2.00 1.67 212
Ranking 22 24 22
Source: SET
Type of Company'’s Investor (%) 2009 2008 2007
Individual 80.15 85.46 81.24
Institutional 19.85 14.54 18.76

Remark : Calculated from the Company’s total trading volume
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» Other Revenue other than Securities Brokerage Fees

In 2009, the Company’s income from interest of margin loan has decreased from last year by Baht 24.14 million to be at Baht 15.53 million
and was accounted for 3.32% of the Company total revenue. This was because the Company has offered less margin loan to clients.

The income from interest and dividend were equivalent to 5.37% of total income in 2009. Most of the income gained was interest on funds
raised from capital increase which were then placed as deposit with financial institutions.

In addition, the Company also received other revenue the amount of which was Baht 1.01 million from share transfer fees, fines for late
payment and fees for being a share registrar.

Nevertheless, the Company registered a loss of Baht 2.17 million from securities trading, the loss amount was due to trading errors
committed by the Company’ employees. The types of trading error were Wrong Account, Wrong Side, Wrong Amount, Wrong Price and
Wrong Stock.

* Expenses
The expense amount for 2009 was Baht 276.81 million, a rise of 7.38% from the previous year. The breakdown for the expense was (1)
employee accounted for 62.13% (2) premises and equipment accounted for 20.81% (3) others accounted for 16.38% of the total; and
the remaining 0.69% is tax and remuneration to directors. Total expense for 2009 has increased compared to 2008, mainly because the

expense related to employee has increased.

The Company’s loan interest in year 2009 was Baht 4.15 million, decreased by Baht 3.14 million or 43.07%. This was the result of lesser
amount of clients fund remains in credit balance and Cash Balance Account.

* Net Profit

In 2009, the Company has net profit of Baht 114.24 million, an increase of Baht 27.32 million from 2008. The Company received more
income from brokerage fees as a result of larger market share from 1.67% to 2.00%.

Financial Situation
Assets

The amount of total assets, as of December 31, 2009, was Baht 2,249.35 million. Most of the Company’s assets were classified as debtors
in securities business and from inter-company securities trading accounts whose amount would fluctuate according to trading volume.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company’s total assets increased by 14.49% from 2008, the decrease was mainly the result of the
decrease in cash and cash equivalent items, and the increase in the net receivables from Clearing House and Securities Business
increased according to the Company trading volume. The breakdown of the Company’s assets as of December 31, 2009 was 27.76%
debtors in securities business, 61.31% Cash and cash equivalent.

+ Cash and Cash Equivalent

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had cash and cash equivalent amount to Baht 1,378.97 million, decreased from 2008 by Baht
179.58 million or 11.52% as a result of increase in fund for margin loan by Baht 431.84 million.

» Capital Investment in Securities
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The Company has no policy to invest its own capital in securities because of the Company’s commitment to engage only in agency
broking. Consequently, there was no movement regarding equity investment. Except the Company’s investment in TSFC.

* Receivables from Clearing House

As of December 31, 2009, the receivables from Clearing House was Baht 144.39 million, Baht 142.39 million from debtors at TSD, an
increased from those of 2009 by Baht 79.26 million or 121.70%, receivables varies according to trading volume which is common in
securities business.

» Securities Business Receivables

As of December 31, 2009, the amount of receivables from securities and derivatives business receivables was Baht 624.42 million, an
increase of 130.00% from 2008 because of the market condition. At the end of 2009, the Company has offered more margin loan to client,
mainly due to economic situation and trading value, the break down of securities business debtors and derivatives business debtors as
of December 31, 2009 are as follows:

* Receivables from cash settlement was Baht 258.59 million, increased from previous year end by Baht 126.49 million, balance
varies according to volume of trades during the last 3 trading days before year end.

* Receivables from loan extended for purchase of Baht 360.72 million, increased from year 2008 by Baht 224.80 million due to
increase in trading volume.

» Other receivables, which are settlement of trades exceeding T+3, receivables from restructured account, and installment as
of December 31, 2009 was Baht 14.23 million decreased from end of year 2008 by Baht 0.34 million. Result of payment received
from debtors.

»  Derivatives business debtors is accounted for Baht 0.98 million, the Company has started derivatives trading operation in year 2008.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has allowance for doubtful debt of Baht 11.60 million, decreased by Baht 0.35 million in
year 2008, mainly because the Company has been able to collect some of debts; the rest of the outstanding debt will be settled by
installment.

* Premises and Equipment

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has in possession premises and equipment equivalent to Baht 43.10 million, higher than 2008
by Baht 18.38 million. This was the Company’s efficiency in asset management.

* Intangible Assets

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has intangible assets of Baht 16.41 million, increased by Baht 7.34 million from 2008 as a result
of the Company’s intention to increase efficiency by upgrading computer software.

* Other Assets

This comprises of debtors such as; deposits, compensation fund for the trade settlement, advanced expenses, accrued income. As
of December 31, 2009, the Company had other assets amounted to Baht 38.57 million, an increased of Baht 2.81 million from 2008
because of the increment of clearing fund.

Other Liabilities
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As of December 31, 2009, the Company has other liabilities of Baht 73.83 million, increased by Baht 37.09 million from 2008 because of
the increase in accrued corporate income tax.

Liquidity

In 2009, the Company cash outflow from operation amounted to Baht 118.62 million, the outflows were securities business payable,
securities business receivables, and receivable from Clearing House, the outstanding balance was a function of market condition and
net trading volume.

In year 2009, the Company has cash outflow due to business investment of Baht 40.85 million. The investment was to enhance operation
efficiency by upgrading computer software.

As regards financing activities, the Company has cash outflow of Baht 20.11 million of which Baht 19.50 million was for dividend paid at
Baht 0.06 per share.

Significant factors that may affect future financial status or company performance

Internal and external economic condition and political situation may affect the Company future financial status or company performance.
Factors such as potential increase of interest rate, oil price hike, drought and politically situation after election, investor expectation on
newly formed government, and terrorism activities in the Southern provinces as well as any possible epidemics might affect investor
confidence. Apart from that, liberalisation of commission fees would create severe competition within the industry.

Auditor Remuneration

At the end of fiscal year December 31, 2009, the amount of remuneration paid to DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU JAIYOS AUDIT
CO., LTD., which is the Company’s auditor, amounted to Baht 1.11 million. The Company did not has other non-audit fee payable to
the auditor or an auditing firm which is associated with the auditor, an individual or a business which is affiliated to the auditor and the
auditing firm which the auditor has a relationship with.

Other fees

The Company did not have other non-audit fee payable to the auditor or an auditing firm which is associated with the auditor, an individual
or a business which is affiliated to the auditor and the auditing firm which the auditor has a relationship with.
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REPORT OF THE
INDEPENDENT

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

We have audited the balance sheets of UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
the statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness and completeness of the presentation. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Niti Jungnitnirundr
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)
BANGKOK Registration No. 3809
February 11, 2010 DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU JAIYOS AUDIT CO., LTD.
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Financial Statement UOBKayHian
UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
UNIT : BAHT
Notes 2009 2008
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,378,972,557 1,5658,557,537
Investment in equity security - net 7 3,488,750 -
Receivable from clearing house 8 144,390,466 65,127,789
Securities business receivable and derivative business
receivable and accrued interest receivable - net 9and 10 624,418,377 271,483,987
Premises improvement and equipment - net " 43,101,888 24,717,578
Intangible assets - net 12 16,407,972 9,068,989
Other assets 13 38,574,529 35,761,593

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements

2,249,354,539

1,964,717,473

Annual Report 2009 12 3



UOBKayHian

UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

UNIT : BAHT
Notes 2009 2008
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Securities business payables and derivatives business payables 343,313,188 189,372,355
Liabilities under finance lease agreements 15 - 1,132,731
Other liabilities 16 73,832,239 36,741,841
TOTAL LIABILITIES 417,145,427 227,246,927
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
SHARE CAPITAL 17
Authorized share capital
400,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 400,000,000 400,000,000
Issued and paid-up share capital
325,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 325,000,000 325,000,000
PREMIUM ON SHARE CAPITAL 18 382,504,415 382,504,415
RETAINED EARNINGS
Appropriated
Statutory reserve 19 40,000,000 40,000,000
1,084,704,697 989,966,131

Unappropriate

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements
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UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

UNIT : BAHT
2009 2008
REVENUES
Brokerage fees from securities business 419,919,393 326,490,786
Brokerage fees from derivatives business 7,386,847 4,974,195
Fees and service income 581,148 3,354,264
Loss on trading in securities (2,145,495) (323,378)
Loss on trading in derivatives (23,582) (42,760)
Interest and dividend 25,086,144 43,724,322
Interest on margin loans 15,534,305 39,676,333
Other income 1,014,774 2,680,272
Total revenues 467,353,534 420,534,034
EXPENSES
Interest on borrowings 4,148,976 7,288,086
Fees and services expenses 33,007,411 27,911,342
Bad debts and doubtful accounts (Reversal) (354,744) (941,134)
Provision for impairment of investment in
equity security (Reversal) (488,750) 7,820,000
Operating expenses
Personnel expenses 138,804,703 121,212,602
Premises and equipment expenses 57,597,642 54,694,064
Taxes and duties 1,417,553 2,799,009
Directors’ remuneration 480,000 290,000
Management benefit expenses 33,167,623 41,053,120
Other expenses 45,343,360 37,744,877
Total expenses 313,123,774 299,871,966
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSES 154,229,760 120,662,068
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 39,991,194 33,739,581
NET PROFIT 114,238,566 86,922,487
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 0.35 0.27
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES 325,000,000 325,000,000

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements
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UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

UNIT : BAHT
Issued and Premium Retained Earnings Total
paid-up on Appropriated ~ Unappropriated Shareholders’
share capital share capital Statutory equity
Notes  ordinary share reserve
Balance as at January 1, 2008 325,000,000 382,504,415 40,000,000 938,793,644 1,686,298,059
Net profit - 86,922,487 86,922,487
Dividend paid 20 - - (35,750,000) (35,750,000)
Balance as at December 31, 2008 325,000,000 382,504,415 40,000,000 989,966,131 1,737,470,546
Balance as at January 1, 2009 325,000,000 382,504,415 40,000,000 989,966,131 1,737,470,546
Net profit - - - 114,238,566 114,238,566
Dividend paid 20 - - (19,500,000) (19,500,000)
Balance as at December 31, 2009 325,000,000 382,504,415 40,000,000 1,084,704,697 1,832,209,112

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements
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UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

UNIT : BAHT
Notes 2009 2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit 114,238,566 86,922,487
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 14,009,910 10,545,711
Reversal of bad debts and doubtful accounts 10 (354,744) (941,134)
Provision for impairment of investment (Reversal) 7 (488,750) 7,820,000
Gain on disposal of equipment (337,881) (482,634)
Gain on termination of finance lease agreement 52.3 (110,190) -
Dividend received - (1,407,600)
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 126,956,911 102,456,830
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Receivable from clearing house (79,262,677) 250,526,821
Securities business receivable and derivatives business
receivable and accrued interest receivable (352,579,646) 826,192,769
Other assets (2,812,936) (12,291,044)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Securities business payables and derivatives business payables 153,940,833 (242,961,824)
Other liabilities 35,135,845 (71,726,571)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (118,621,670) 852,196,981

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements
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UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

UNIT : BAHT
Notes 2009 2008
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment 5.2.1 (29,454,915) (4,607,159)
Purchase of intangible assets 5.2.2 (8,734,506) (6,841,427)
Proceeds from disposal of equipment 339,689 485,515
Cash received from dividend - 1,407,600
Cash paid for purchase of investment in equity security 7 (3,000,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities (40,849,732) (9,555,471)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for financial lease (613,578) (533,269)
Dividend paid 20 (19,500,000) (35,750,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (20,113,578) (36,283,269)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (179,584,980) 806,358,241
Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1, 1,558,557,537 752,199,296
Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 6 1,378,972,557 1,558,557,537

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements

12 8 Annual Report 2009




UOBKayHian

UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited, “the Company”, was incorporated as a limited company under Thai
laws on July 2, 1998. Subsequently, the Company converted the status to be a public limited company in accordance with the

Public Limited Companies Act on February 21, 2005 and was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on November 22, 2005.

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited, the major shareholders, incorporated in Singapore which is
the ultimate parent company, has invested in 76.92% of the Company’s issued and paid-up share capital. Its head office is located

at 130-132, 3rd floor, Sindhorn Building Tower |, Wireless Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330.

The Company operates its business in Thailand and its principal activity is securities brokerage and derivatives agent.

The Company was granted licenses from the Ministry of Finance to operate the following securities businesses:

1. Securities Brokerage
Securities Trading
Securities Underwriting

Investment Advisory Service

ok~ D

Derivatives Agent

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has 10 branches, total number of personnel of the Company are 220 and 239

persons, respectively.

2. BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company maintains its accounting records in Thai Baht and prepares its statutory financial statements in conformity with
accounting standards and practices generally accepted in Thailand and in accordance with the Notifications of the Office of the

Securities and Exchange Commission.

The presentation of the financial statements has been made in compliance with requirement of the Notification of the Office of
the Securities and Exchange Commission relating to the format of the financial statements of securities companies No. Sor Tor/

Nor. 26/2549 dated June 29, 2006.

For the year 2007, Thai Accounting Standard No. 1 (Revised 2007) “Presentation of Financial Statements” (previously TAS 35) and
No. 7 (Revised 2007) “Cash Flow Statements” (previously TAS 25) were announced by the Federation of Accounting Professions and
applied for the financial statements of periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The revised standards have no material impact on

the financial statements of the Company. However, the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are still
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presented in accordance with the Notification of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission (Thailand) No. Sor Tor/Nor. 26/2549

dated June 29, 2006 regarding “The Form of Financial Statements for Securities Companies”.

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the Notification of Federation of Accounting Professions No. 12/2552 dated May
15, 2009 regarding the renumbering of Thai Accounting Standards (TASs) and Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs) to be
equivalent to the International Accounting Standard and the International Financial Reporting Standard. Therefore, the disclosure of
new number of TASs and TFRSs in the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 have been used in

accordance with such the Notification.

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the Notification of Federation of Accounting Profession No. 16/2552 dated May 21, 2009
regarding the following accounting standards that were announced in the Royal Gazette, but not yet in effect for the year ended

December 31, 2009:

Thai Accounting Standard/Thai Financial Reporting Standard Effective date
Accounting Framework (Revised 2007) January 1, 2011
TAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government January 1, 2012
Assistance
TAS 24 (Revised 2007) Related Party Disclosures (previously TAS 47) January 1, 2011
TAS 40 Investment Property January 1, 2011

The Company’s management anticipates that all of the above accounting standards will be adopted in the Company’s financial
statements when they become effective and the management has assessed the impact of these accounting standards, when they
are effective, for financial periods of initial application and does not expect them to have a material effect on the Company’s financial

statements.

An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the statutory financial statements that are in Thai language.
In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between two languages, the Thai language statutory financial statements shall

prevail.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention exceptas disclosed in the accounting policies below.

Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are summarized below:
3.1 Revenue and expense recognition

Brokerage fees

Brokerage fees on securities and derivatives trading are recognized as income on transaction date.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

Fees and service income

Fees are recognized as income on an accrual basis.

Gains (losses) on trading in securities and derivatives

Gains (losses) on trading in securities and derivatives are recognized as income or expenses on transaction date.

Interest and dividend on investments in securities
Interest on investments is recognized as income on an accrual basis. Dividend on investments is recognized as income

when the dividend is declared.

Interest on margin loans
Interest is recognized on an accrual basis, but where there is uncertainty as to the collectability of loans and interest,

the Company ceases accrual.

The following conditions relate to collectability of loans and interest which is held to be uncertain, which are based on the

guidelines stipulated by the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission:

1) Loans which are not fully collateralized

2) Installment loans with repayments scheduled less frequently than every 3 months and for which principal or interest
is overdue by more than 3 months

3) Installment loans with repayments scheduled no less frequently than every 3 months, unless there is clear evidence
and a high degree of certainty that full repayment will be received

4) Other receivables from which interest payment is overdue for 3 months or more.

Expenses

Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

Recognition and amortization of customer deposits

Money which customers have placed with the Company in cash accounts for securities and derivatives trading and credit
balance for securities trading is recorded as the asset and liability of the Company for internal control purposes. As at the
balance sheet date, the Company writes these amounts off from both assets and liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, current accounts, saving accounts, time deposit with remaining to
maturity not more than 3 months and without commitments, call note receivables and term note receivables maturing within
3 months. This accords with the Notification issued by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Long-term deposits at financial institutions

Long-term deposits at financial institutions represent fixed deposit accounts, promissory notes with remaining maturities
over 3 months and deposit accounts with obligations.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

Investments in equity security

Trading securities are stated at fair value, with changes in the fair values being presented as an unrealized gain/(loss) on
securities in the statement of income.

General investments are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

Realized gains and losses on the sale of securities are determined by the weighted average method and are reflected in
the statement of income.

Loss on impairment (if any) of investments in general investments are included in the statements of income when the
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value.

Receivables and payable from/to clearing house

Net balances of receivable and payable incurred from settlement of securities trading each day through Clearing House is
presented as net balance receivable and payable from/to clearing house in accordance with the announcement of the
Securities and Exchange Commission relating to the format of the financial statements of securities companies No. Sor Tor/
Nor. 26/2549 dated June 29, 2006.

Securities business receivable and derivative business receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts
Securities business receivables comprise of 3 categories as follows:

3.7.1 Receivable from securities business and derivatives business of cash accounts

Receivable from securities business and derivatives business of cash accounts are the receivable that were derived from
cash settlements within 3 working days and 1 working day after the securities and derivatives purchasing date, respectively.

3.7.2 Loan for securities purchase

Loan for securities purchase are accounts that debtors are granted loan for securities purchasing with collaterals
placed not lower than the rate required by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

3.7.3 Other receivables

Other receivables include overdue receivable from securities business and restructured or installment receivable.

The allowance for doubtful accounts on securities business receivables is based on management’s review and
assessment of the status of individual debtor and overall debtors as well as the requirements as stated in the Office
of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Notifications No. Kor Thor. 33/2543 and Kor Thor. 5/2544 dated August
25, 2000 and February 15, 2001, respectively. Such assessment takes into consideration various factors including the
risks involved and the value of collateral. Allowance is made for the estimated losses that might be incurred where
the debts are not fully secured and/or there exists a possibility that principal and interest cannot be recovered in full.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

Premises improvement and equipment

Premises improvement and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold improvement 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

No depreciation is provided for premises and equipment under installation.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statements of income during the accounting period in which they are incurred.
The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Company.
Major renovations are depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Repair and maintenance costs are recognized

as an expense when incurred.

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events of changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceed its recoverable amount, an

impairment loss is recognized in statement of income immediately.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses (if any).

Amortization

Amortization is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis from the date that intangible assets are available

for use over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software 5 years

Computer software license Over the period of the license term

TFEX membership fee are stated at cost.
The carrying amount of each intangible asset is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment where it is considered

necessary.

Securities business payables and derivatives business payables

Securities business payables and derivatives business payables are the obligations of the Company in respect of its
securities business and derivatives business with outside parties.
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3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

Long-term lease

3.11.1  Operating lease

Lease in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating lease. Rentals applicable to such operating leases are charged to the statement of income over

the lease term.

3.11.2 Finance lease

Lease in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership other than legal title are transferred to the
Company is accounted for as finance lease. At inception, the fair value of the leased assets is recorded together
with the obligation. The leased assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. Interest or financial charge is recognized by effective interest rate method over the term of contracts.
Interest or financial charge and depreciation are recognized as expenses in the statement of income.

Provision for liabilities

The Company recognizes provision as liabilities in the financial statements when the amount of the liability can be reliability
estimated and are commitments when it is likely that loss of resources which are of economic benefit to the Company will

result from settlement of such commitments.

Provident fund
The contribution for employee provident fund is recorded as expense when incurred.
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies incurred during the year are translated into Baht at the rates of exchange at
transaction dates and monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Baht at the reference exchange rates established by the Bank of Thailand on that date. Gains and losses on foreign
exchange arising on settlements and translation are recognized as income or expense when incurred.

Income tax

Income tax expense is based on tax paid and accrued for the current year.

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are determined by dividing net earnings for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares issued and paid-up at the end of the year.

Risk management and prevention

The Company has no policy to speculate in or engage in trading of any financial derivative instruments.
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3.18

Financial instruments carried in the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, long-term deposits at financial in
stitutions, investment in equity security, receivable from Clearing House, securities business receivables and derivative
business receivables, payable to Clearing House, and securities business payables and derivative business payables.
The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Use of Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles also requires the
Company’s management to exercise judgments in order to determine the accounting policies, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on management’'s reasonable consideration of current events, actual results may differ from
these estimates.

RECLASSIFICATION

The statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2008 has been reclassified by separately presented
management benefit expenses of Baht 41.05 million which previously presented as part of personnel expenses to conform to the

classification used in the statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2009 (see Note 24).

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

5.1

5.2

Cash paid for interest and income tax are as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

2009 2008

Baht Baht
Interest 4,067,329 8,023,637
Income tax 18,567,055 65,624,698

Non-cash items

5.2.1 Cash paid for purchase of equipments are as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

2009 2008
Baht Baht
Purchase of equipment 30,271,123 6,273,159
Plus Beginning balance of equipment payable - -
Less Purchase fixed assets by leasing - (1,666,000)
Less Ending balance of equipment payable (816,208) -
Cash payment for purchase of equipment 29,454,915 4,607,159
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5.2.2 Cash paid for purchase of intangible assets are as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

2009 2008
Baht Baht
Purchase of intangible assets 9,872,851 6,841,427
Plus Beginning balance of intangible assets payable - -
Less Ending balance of in tangible assets payable (1,138,345) -
Cash payment for purchase of intangible assets 8,734,506 6,841,427

5.2.3 For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company terminated long-term lease of leased motor vehicle. On
termination date, the Company has liabilities under finance lease agreement and book value of motor vehicle of Baht
519,153 and Baht 408,963, respectively. And the Company has gain from termination of such agreement of
Baht 110,190.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Baht Baht

176,429 170,031
228,152,028 83,143,368

2,110,000,000

1,755,000,000

2,338,328,457
(959,355,900)

1,838,313,399
(279,755,862)

1,378,972,557

1,658,557,5637

(* Deposit accounts for the customers are not shown as assets and liabilities in financial statements according to the
announcement of the SEC.)

7. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES - NET

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Cost/book value Cost/book value
Baht Baht
Long - term general investment
Equity security
Ordinary shares 3,000,000 7,820,000
Less Allowance for impairment of investment in equity securities - (7,820,000)
Add Reversal of provision for impairment of investment in equity securities 488,750 -
Total 3,488,750 -
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Investment income received from such equity security is as follows:

Dividend

8. RECEIVABLE FROM CLEARING HOUSE

Receivable from Thailand Securities Depository (TSD)
Receivable from Thailand Clearing House (TCH)
Less Receivable from Clearing House for the customers*

Total Receivable from Clearing House

For the years ended
December 31,

2009
Baht

As at

December 31,

2008
Baht

1,407,600

As at

December 31,

2009 2008
Baht Baht
142,392,444 63,874,845

3,915,622 2,622,500
(1,917,500) (1,369,556)
144,390,466 65,127,789

(* Receivable from Clearing House for the customers are not shown as assets and liabilities in financial statements according to

the announcement of the SEC.)
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9.

138

SECURITIES BUSINESS RECEIVABLE AND DERIVATIVE BUSINESS RECEIVABLE AND ACCRUED

INTEREST RECEIVABLE - NET

Securities business receivable

Customer account - cash

Customer account - credit balance

Other receivables

Total securities business receivable

Add Accrued interest receivable

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 10)
Net securities business receivable and

accrued interest receivable

Derivative business receivable

Derivative business receivable
Total securities business receivable and derivative business

receivable and accrued interest receivable - net

As at

December 31,

As at

December 31,

2009 2008

Baht Baht
258,587,240 132,098,422
360,715,452 135,916,546
14,230,844 14,566,136
633,533,536 282,581,104
1,499,507 676,801

(11,598,808)

(11,953,552)

623,434,235 271,304,353
984,142 179,634
624,418,377 271,483,987

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has ceased to recognize the interest income from securities

business receivable amounting to Baht 14.21 million and Baht 14.57 million, respectively, of which the allowance for

doubtful accounts was fully set up for doubtful status in accordance with the Announcement of the Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) No. Kor.Thor. 33/2543 dated August 25, 2000 which is updated by the Notification No. Kor.
Thor. 5/2544 dated February 15, 2001 regarding the accounting preparation of sub-standard receivable of securities companies.

The Company has classified Securities and Derivatives business receivables in accordance with the Notification of the Office of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) No. Kor.Thor. 33/2543 dated August 25, 2000, which is updated by the

Notification No. Kor.Thor. 5/2544 dated February 15, 2001 as follows:
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Classification

Normal debts
Doubtful debts
Total

Classification

Normal debts
Doubtful debts
Total

10. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

ess Reversal of bad debts and doubtful accounts

At end of year (Note 9)

Total debts

As at December 31, 2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Amount Amount
(include interest Percentage Collateral required set up by the
receivables) Required Amount by SEC Company
Baht by SEC Baht Baht Baht
621,805,793 - - - -
14,211,392 100 2,612,584 11,598,808 11,598,808
636,017,185 2,612,584 11,598,808 11,598,808
As at December 31, 2008
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total debts Amount Amount
(include interest Percentage Collateral required set up by the
receivables) Required Amount by SEC Company
Baht by SEC Baht Baht Baht
268,871,403 - - - -
14,566,136 100 2,612,584 11,953,552 11,953,552
283,437,539 2,612,584 11,953,552 11,953,552
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Baht Baht
11,953,552 12,894,686
(354,744) (941,134)
11,598,808 11,953,552
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11. PREMISES IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPMENT - NET

For the year ended December 31, 2009

Balance as at Increase Decrease Transfer in/ Balance as at
December 31, (Transfer out) December 31,
2008 2009
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Cost
Leasehold improvement 41,046,607 1,095,997 (3,564,174) 320,249 38,898,679
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 87,812,480 21,360,770 (18,191,980) 6,087,661 97,068,931
Vehicles 19,351,698 1,505,000 (828,000) (926,000) 19,102,698
Total cost 148,210,785 23,961,767 (22,584,154) 5,481,910 155,070,308
Accumulated depreciation
Leasehold improvement (37,186,207) (1,690,945) 3,564,171 - (35,312,981)
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment (76,530,119) (7,170,472) 18,190,175 - (65,510,416)
Vehicles (9,895,778) (2,614,625) 828,000 517,037 (11,165,366)
Total accumulated depreciation (123,612,104) (11,476,042) 22,582,346 517,037 (111,988,763)
Leasehold improvement and office
equipment under installation 118,897 6,309,356 - (6,407,910) 20,343
Total premises improvement
and equipment - net 24,717,578
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Cost
Premises
Leasehold improvement
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Vehicles

Total cost

Accumulated depreciation

Premises

Leasehold improvement

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Leasehold improvement

and office equipment under installation
Allowance for impairment of premises

Total premises improvement
and equipment - net

Depreciation

For the year ended December 31, 2008

Balance as at Increase Decrease Transfer in/ Balance as at
December 31, (Transfer out) December 31,
2007 2008
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

5,382,756 - (5,382,756) - -
40,144,089 1,176,652 (520,715) 246,581 41,046,607
85,864,831 2,904,529 (1,117,380) 160,500 87,812,480
18,464,698 1,666,000 (779,000) - 19,351,698

149,856,374 5,747,181 (7,799,851) 407,081 148,210,785

(3,169,527) - 3,169,527 - -
(36,218,680) (1,488,213) 520,686 - (37,186,207)
(73,157,066) (4,487,582) 1,114,529 - (76,530,119)

(7,609,594) (3,065,183) 778,999 - (9,895,778)

(120,154,867) (9,040,978) 5,583,741 - (123,612,104)
- 525,978 - (407,081) 118,897

(2,213,229) - 2,213,229 - -
24,717,578

27,488,278

For the years ended
December 31,

11,476,042 9,040,978

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The original cost,
before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets, amounted to Baht 102.46 million and Baht 115.98 million,

respectively.
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET

2009
Remaining  Balance as at Increase Amortization Transfer in/  Balance as at
Useful life ~ December 31, (decrease) expense (Transfer out) December 31,
2008 2009
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Computer software 1-5years 3,648,398 8,281,417 (2,433,923) 1,396,584 10,892,476
Computer software license 4 years 420,591 - (99,945) - 320,646
TFEX membership fee 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Computer software under
installation - 1,591,434 - (1,396,584) 194,850
Total 9,068,989 9,872,851 (2,533,868) - 16,407,972
2008
Remaining  Balance as at Increase Amortization Transfer in/ Balance as at
Useful life  December 31, (decrease) expense (Transfer out) December 31,
2008 2009
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Computer software 1-5years 3,732,295 1,330,423 (1,425,324) 11,004 3,648,398
Computer software license 5 years - 500,000 (79,409) - 420,591
TFEX membership fee - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Computer software under -
installation - 11,004 - (11,004)
Total 3,732,295 6,841,427 (1,504,733) - 9,068,989
For the years ended
December 31,
2009 2008
Baht Baht
Amortization 2,533,868 1,504,733
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13. OTHER ASSETS

Indemnity compensation fund in net settlement system
Deposits

Prepaid expenses

Accrued income

Others

Total other assets

14. SHORT-TERM BORROWING FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Baht Baht
21,063,397 19,360,657
14,175,539 13,489,214

2,686,389 2,296,067
182,762 389,091
466,442 226,564

38,574,529 35,761,593

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had bank overdraft facility and loans in Thai Baht from a local non-related bank,

without collateral as follows:

Interest rate

MOR*

Based on Market Condition

Credit line of bank overdrafts

Credit line of loans

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, these credit lines were undrawn.
(* MOR is interest rate of Overdraft Facilities for Corporate Customer in Good Standing.)

As at

December 31,

As at

December 31,

2009 2008

Baht Baht
30,000,000 60,000,000
400,000,000 650,000,000
430,000,000 710,000,000
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15. LIABILITIES UNDER FINANCE LEASE AGREEMENTS

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, liabilities under finance lease agreements represent finance lease contracts of leased motor

vehicles for operation as follows:

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Baht Baht
Minimum lease payments obligation under
long-term lease agreements - 1,323,476
Less Deferred interest expenses - (190,745)
- 1,132,731
Current portion due within one year - 1,132,731
- 1,132,731
16. OTHER LIABILITIES
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Baht Baht
Accrued corporate income tax 30,778,090 9,117,057
Accrued remuneration of employee 18,970,275 12,033,652
Accrued expenses 12,477,093 7,601,241
Others 11,606,781 7,989,891
Total other liabilities 73,832,239 36,741,841

17. SHARE CAPITAL

On November 23, 2009, the extraordinary general meeting of shareholder No. 1/2009 approved a resolution to amendment of
the condition on the allocation of the Company’s new ordinary shares up to 75 million which had been previously resolved in the
extraordinary general meeting of shareholder on February 14, 2005 from offering to the existing shareholders at the offering price
not less than par value to offering to the existing shareholders and/or specific personal investors and/or specific institution investors
at the offering price not less than par value in accordance with the objective of the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory

Board No. Tor Chor 28/2551 regarding “Application for and Approval of Offer for Sale of Newly Issued Shares”.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

PREMIUM ON SHARE CAPITAL

Premium on share capital represents shares subscription monies received in excess of the par value of the shares issued.

Premium on share capital is not available for dividend distribution.

STATUTORY RESERVE

The Company is required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net profit after deducting accumulated deficit brought
forward (if any) until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered share capital according to the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.

2535. The statutory reserve could not be used for dividend payment.

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company’s statutory reserve equals to 10% of the registered share capital.

DIVIDENDS

At the Annual General Meeting for shareholders No. 1/2008 held on April 18, 2008, the shareholders approved dividend payment
of Baht 0.11 per share for the year ended December 31, 2007 totaling Baht 35.75 million and were paid to the shareholders on
May 16, 2008.

At the Annual General Meeting for shareholders No. 1/2009 held on April 20, 2009, the shareholders approved dividend payment
of Baht 0.06 per share for the year ended December 31, 2008 totaling Baht 19.50 million and were paid to the shareholders on
May 19, 2009.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives in managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Company has policy to pay dividend at least 20% of net profit after deducting legal reserve. The payment is subject to the

resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

Under the Notification of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission No. Kor Tor. 18/2549 regarding “Principle for
Maintaining Capital Adequacy”, the Company shall have adequate capital at the end of the day of at least Baht 15.00 million and

at least 7% of general liability.

The Company has been granted a securities business license in the form of derivatives agent in accordance to the law of derivatives
agent. The Company has to maintain capital adequacy at the end of the day at least Baht 25.00 million and at least 7% of general
liability and assets which will be placed as collateral except in case the Company discontinues operation of derivatives agent and
informs the Securities and Exchange Commission, after which the Company has to maintain capital following the requirement in

the third paragraph.

Additionally, in accordance with the regulation of Thailand Clearing House Co., Ltd. (TCH) chapter 300 “Ordinary Members”
regarding the “Qualification of Membership”, the Ordinary Membership is required to have share capital at least Baht 100 million
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22.

23.

24.

25.

146

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has a capital adequacy of Baht 1,721.01 million or 479.09% of general liability
and assets which will be placed as collateral and Baht 1,661.59 million or 845.93% of general liability and assets which will be
placed as collateral, respectively.

PROVIDENT FUND

The Company has established a contributory registered provident fund, in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.
Under the plan, the employees must contribute 3% or 5% of their basic salaries and the Company must contribute 5%. A
registered provident fund manager has been appointed to manage the fund in compliance with the requirements of the Ministerial
Regulations issued under the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2542.

For the years ended

December 31,

2009 2008
Baht Baht
The Company’s contribution expenses 4,047,622 4,245,103

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration represents the benefits paid to the Company’s directors in accordance with Section 90 of the Public
Limited Companies Act, exclusive of salaries and related benefits payable to directors who hold executive position. Directors’
remuneration for the years 2009 and 2008 was approved by the ordinary shareholders’ meeting of the Company held on April 20,
2009 and April 18, 2008, respectively.

MANAGEMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES

Management benefit expenses represents cash remuneration as salaries and bonus paid to the Company’s managements in
accordance with the Notification of the Capital Market and Supervisory Board No. Tor. Jor. 24/2552 dated July 20, 2009 regarding
“Prescription of Prohibited Characteristics of Issuing Company’s Director and Executive” (see Note 4).

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

According to the Royal Decree issued under the Revenue Code regarding the corporate income tax rate deduction and the
corporate income tax exemption No. 387 B.E. 2544 dated August 28, 2001 and No. 421 B.E. 2547 dated October 3, 2004, the
corporate income tax for listed companies of the Stock Exchange of Thailand has been reduced from 30% to 25% of net profit
which does not exceed Baht 300 million. This will remain in effect for five consecutive accounting periods beginning on or after
September 6, 2001 and December 31, 2005. The Company begins to use such tax rate reduction in 2006.

The applicable tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 is 25% of net profit which does not exceed Baht 300
million.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has corporate income tax to pay in a higher rate than the
Revenue Code’s rate due to added back transactions which are non-deductible expenses.
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26.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related persons or entities of the Company are defined as persons or entities that control the Company or are controlled by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly or are under the same control as the Company. These include holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries within the same group. In addition, related companies also include associated companies
and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting shares of the Company and have significant influence over
the Company, key management personnel, directors or officers of the Company. This also applies to the close members of the

family of such individuals and companies associated with these individuals.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely

the legal form.

The Company has a major shareholder namely UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited, incorporated in Singapore.

The names of the related companies are as follows:

Name Relationship Business type
UOB Kay Hian Private Limited Same group company Securities
UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited Same group company Securities
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl. Same group company Banking

The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below:

Pricing policies

Brokerage income At market price which is the same rate as general client
Interest income At agreed price which approximates market value

Interest expense At agreed price which approximates market value

Expenses At agreed price which approximates market value

Fee expenses Under service agreement which is in normal business operation
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Significant balances with related parties which are same group company were as follows:

As at As at
December 31, December 31,

2009 2008

Baht Baht
Deposits at bank 129,720,033 64,692,383
Securities business receivable 64,679,288 29,430,639
Securities business payable 66,421,164 35,371,730
Other receivable 304 4,057
Other liabilities 4,878,622 3,058,321
Company’s deposits on behalf of customers 390,500,725 183,441

Significant transactions with related parties which are same group company were as follows:

For the years ended

December 31,

2009 2008

Baht Baht
Brokerage income 72,023,049 48,018,548
Interest income 677,626 1,515,746
Other income 42,286 5,181
Interest expenses 8 39,045
Fee expenses 440,616 290,330
Personnel expenses - Insurance premium 2,650,572 3,049,359
Other expenses - Fee expenses under service agreement 17,486,350 12,723,300

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, long-term deposits at financial institutions,
investment in equity security, receivable from Clearing House, securities business receivables and derivative business
receivables, payable to Clearing House, securities business payables and derivative business payables and certain other assets
and liabilities.

The Company has no policy for speculation in or engage in the trading of any derivative financial instruments.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk and interest rate risk from its normal business activities. These
are summarized as follows:
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27.2

27.3

27.4

Credit risk

Credit risk derives from failure by counterparties to discharge their obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
Financial assets shown in balance sheets at the book value deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts is the maximum

value of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with

financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

The Company’s financial assets mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents, receivable from clearing house and
securities business receivables and derivative business receivables on cash settlement term which are highly liquid and

are able to be settled quickly at close to their fair value.

Currency risk

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company does not have any material financial instruments in foreign currency.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The outstanding significant financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 which may be affected by the

fluctuation of market interest rates are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht
As at December 31, 2009

Outstanding balances of net financial instruments

Repricing or maturity dates Interest rate (%)
Floating Within Over Non-performing No Floating Fixed
rate Atcall 1year 1-5 years 5 years receivables interest  Total rate Rate
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 158.2 1,150.6 - - - - 70.1 1,378.9 0.25-0.6 1.10-1.15
Receivables from Clearing House - - - - - - 1444 1444 - -
Securities business receivable,
derivative business receivable
and accrued interest receivables - 360.7 - - - 14.2 2611 636.0 - 4.75-12.0
Financial liabilities
Securities business payables and
derivative business payables - - - - - - 343.3  343.3 - -

Liabilities under finance lease

agreements - - - - - - - - - -
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Unit : Million Baht

As at December 31, 2008
Outstanding balances of net financial instruments

Repricing or maturity dates Interest rate (%)
Floating Within Over  Non-performing No Floating Fixed
rate  Atcall 1year 1-5years 5 years receivables interest  Total rate rate
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 67.9 1,475.2 - - - - 155 15586 0.13-25 2.62
Receivables from Clearing House - - - - - - 65.1 65.1 - -
Securities business receivable,
derivative business receivable
and accrued interest receivables - 135.9 - - - 14.6 133.0 283.5 - 575-120
Financial liabilities
Securities business payables and
derivative business payables - - - - - - 1894 1894 - -
Liabilities under finance lease
agreements - - 1.1 - - - - 1.1 - 59-6.4

27.5

Fair value

Considerable judgment is necessarily required in estimation of fair value of financial statement. Accordingly, the estimated
fair value presented herein is not necessarily indicative of the amount that could be realized in a current market exchange.
The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated
fair value. The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair values of financial

instruments.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. The Company determined the fair value of financial instruments on the basis as

follows:

27.5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents are equal to the carrying amount as they are highly liquid.

27.5.2 Investments

Fair value of investments in non-marketable equity securities are estimated based on net asset value.

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, fair values of financial assets and liabilities of the Company are not significantly

different from their carrying values except for general investments in non-listed equity securities as follow:
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As at December 31, 2009 As at December 31, 2008
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Financial assets
Investment in equity securities 3,488,750 3,928,487 - -

27.5.3 Receivable and payable from/to clearing house and securities business receivable and payable

Fair value of receivable and payable from/to clearing house and securities business receivable and payable are

based on the carrying value because of its short-term nature.

28. SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

28.1

28.2

Service Agreement

During 2009 and 2008, the Company entered into the Service Agreement with UOB Kay Hian Private Limited, a related
company, to assist the Company in business development for support the Company’s operation. The Company and the

related company thus have to comply with the condition and pay service fee as stated in the agreement.
Acquisition Business Agreement

On December 16, 2009, the Company entered into the Acquisition Business Agreement with Merchant Partners Securities
Public Company Limited (“Merchant”) for brokerage business transfer which comprised of assets and computer equipment,
office furniture, the right and benefit to engage, employ or otherwise contract the exclusive services of the marketing
officers including all customer accounts of such officers and rights relating to certain leases relating to brokerage business
but excluding securities brokerage businesses licenses, monetary assets, accounts receivables and all liabilities which
included obligations and commitments of Merchant and any liabilities arose from transactions entered by Merchant’s
clients prior to the transferred date (“Business”). The Business transfer value is not more than Baht 106,879,680 as
appraised by the Board of Directors No. 6/2552 held on December 16, 2009, based on the closing price of the ordinary
shares of the Company traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Thailand on the trading day before the Board
of Directors’ Meeting which the closing price was Baht 3.54 per share and subject to the price adjustment as specified in
the agreement. The Company will pay for the Business by issuing not more than 30,192,000 new ordinary shares with a par
value of Baht 1 each equivalent to not more than 8.5% of the total issued and paid-up share of the Company. In addition,
the Company will approve the appointment of two Directors of Merchant as new directors of the Company, whereby the

authorized signatories remain the same (see Note 31).

On January 22, 2010, the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders No. 1/2010 resolved to approve the acquisition

and transfer of the brokerage business from Merchant under such agreement (see Note 31.1).

29. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

29.1

The Company has non-cancellable lease agreements for office premises and facilities for period 1 - 3 years. The agreements

shall be renewable every 1 - 3 years with the rental fee rate as specified in such agreements. The Company does not have
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29.2

29.3

294

29.5

29.6

an option to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of lease period. These agreements will be expired during August 2009

to November 2011.

The Company was liable to pay rental and related service fee as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 as follows:

Unit : Baht
Type Remaining rental expenses
As at December 31, 2009 As at December 31, 2008
Within 1 year Within 2 - 5 years Within 1 year Within 2 - 5 years
Building 13,651,751 98,000 19,930,891 13,749,751
Office equipment 72,900 - 97,200 72,900

The Company has finance lease agreements which the future payment under lease contracts (Note 15) are summarized

as follows:
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Baht Baht
Within 1 year - 1,323,476
The Company has contingent liabilities on bank’s issuance of letter of guarantee as follows:
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Baht Baht
Provincial Electricity Authority of Thailand - 40,000
Communication services - 1,550,000
Total - 1,590,000

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company has withdrawn the above letters of guarantee.

The Company is required to pay a membership fee to the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) on a monthly basis of Baht
50,000 and at the rate of 0.005 % of the trading volume.

The Company has a commitment under an on-line trading service agreement whereby the Company is charged a fee at
the rate of 0.02% - 0.05 % of its trading volume, with the minimum payment being Baht 20,000 per month.

The Company is required to pay annual membership fee to the Thailand Future Exchange Plc. (TFEX) on a yearly basis
of Baht 500,000 and annual fee to Thailand Clearing House Co., Ltd. of Baht 300,000.
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29.7 The Company is required to pay fee to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission for its business operations
as licensed whereby the Company is charged a fee at a rate of 1 percent of total brokerage fees, fee income and
service income. Such fee shall not be less than Baht 500,000 per annum and not more than Baht 5,000,000 per annum.

29.8 The Company is required to pay contributions to the Compensation Fund for Clearing and Settlement, which is overseen
by Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited, on a monthly basis, at the rates of 0.008, 0.012 or 0.016 percent
of its net settlement value each month, which shall not be less than Baht 1,000 per month.

29.9 The Company is required to pay contributions to the Compensation Fund for Clearing and Settlement, which is overseen
by Thailand Clearing House Company Limited, on a monthly basis, at the rates of 0.12 and 0.22 percent of daily Average
Margin Requirement of month, which shall not be less than Baht 1,000 per month.

30. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

The Company’s operation involves mainly in Securities brokerage and derivatives agent and is operated only in Thailand,
accordingly, no business or geographical area segment information is presented.

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 22, 2010, the Company’s extraordinary general meeting of shareholders No. 1/2010 resolved to approve the
following matters:

31.1  The acquisition and transfer of the brokerage business from Merchant Partners Securities Public Company Limited
(“Merchant”). The Business transfer value is Baht 106,879,680. For the consideration of the Business transfer from
Merchant, the Company will allot new ordinary shares of 30,192,000 shares with a par value of Baht 1 each equivalent
to 8.5% of the total issued and paid-up share of the Company which subject to the price adjustment as specified in the
agreement (see Note 28.2) and to authorize some directors of the Company and/or any person entrusted by such
directors to have an authority to take actions until completion of such business transfer.

31.2  The allotment of new ordinary shares of 30,192,000 shares with a par value of Baht 1 each equivalent to 8.5% of the
total issued share of the Company to offering to the specific personal investor, Merchant, in accordance with the
Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. Tor Chor. 28/2551 regarding “Application for and Approval of
Offer for Sale of Newly Issued Shares” (see Note 17). For the consideration of the business transfer from Merchant which
the business transfer value is Baht 106,879,680 appraised by the Board of Directors No. 6/2552 held on December
16, 2009, based on the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company traded on the main board of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand on the trading day before the Board of Directors’ Meeting which the closing price was Baht
3.54 per share subject to the price adjustment as specified in the agreement (see Note 28.2) and to authorize the Board
of Directors and/or authorized Directors and/or any person entrusted by Board of Directors and/or authorized directors
of the Company to have an authority to issuing and offering such shares.

31.3 The appointment of two Directors of Merchant as new directors of the Company, whereby the authorized signatories

remain the same, subject to the terms and conditions in the acquisition business agreement (see Note 28.2) and the
application for approval from the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect of such Director appointment

be approved.
32. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been approved for issuing by the Board of Directors on February 11, 2010.

Annual Report 2009 153



UOBKayHian

INFORMATION OF

DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

partne \

FBrokering

Name - Last name

Mr. Wee Ee-chao

Position Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Executive Committee and Authorised Director
Age 55 years
Education Bachelor Degree of Business Administration The American University of Washington D.C.

% of shareholding

0.17

Last 5 years
experience

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Executive Committee and
Authorised Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Managing Director, UOB Kay Hian Private Limited, Singapore

Managing Director, Kheng Leong Company Limited, Singapore

2001 - present

1981 - present
1976 - present

Name - Last name

Mr. Viroj Tangjetanaporn

Position Chairman of Audit Committee and Independent Director

Age 48 years

Education Bachelor Degree of Finance University of New South Wales, Australia
Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) Class of 30", 2004
Certificate of Audit Committee Programme (ACP) Class of 4", 2005

% of shareholding

0.09

Last 5 years
experience

March 8, 2007 - Present Chairman of Audit Committee and Independent Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
2005 — March 7, 2007 Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Director, Econolodge Company Limited

President, TCC Land Company Limited

CEO, Amarin Plaza Public Company Limited

Managing Director, Cerberus Partners Company Limited

Jul 2005 - Present
Dec 2003 - Oct 2004
Dec 2000 - Dec 2003
Jun 1998 - Oct 2000
1997 - 1998

1989 - 1996

Vice President, SG Asia (Singapore)
Country Treasurer/Head of Financial Market Division, Cargill Group in Thailand
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Name - Last name

Mr. Somchat Chinthammit

Position Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

Age 52 years

Education Master Degree of Business Administration (Marketing) Thammasat University
Master Degree of Business Administration (Marketing) Chulalongkorn University

Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) Class of 17", 2004
Certificate of Director Certification Programme (DCP) Class of 55", 2005
Certificate of Audit Committee Programme (ACP) Class of 8", 2005

% of shareholding

0.05

Last 5 years

experience

2005 - present Audit Committee Member and Independent Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
2003 - present

1988 - present

Managing Director, Top Blend International Company Limited
Deputy Managing Director, Bangkok Inter Food Company Limited

1988 - present Managing Director, Thai Flour Industry Company Limited

Name - Last name

Mr. Loh Poh Weng

Position Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

Age 68 years

Education Master Degree of Business Administration University of Dubuque
Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Certification Programme (DCP) Class of 57", 2005

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

March 8, 2007 - Present Audit Committee Member and Independent Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Apr 2006 — March 7, Consultant and Non-Authorised Director

2007 UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Sep 2004 - Mar 2006 Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

May 2003 - Aug 2004 Director and Chief Operating Officer

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
Oct 2001 - Apr 2003 Director and Chief Operating Officer

Kim Eng Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Jul - Sep 2001

Nov 2000 - Jul 2001

Advisor, Vickers Ballas Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
President and Authorised Director

Vickers Ballas Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
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Name - Last name

Mr. Chaipat Narkmontanakum

Position Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised Director
Age 46 years

Education Master Degree of Business Administration University of Laverne

Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) Class of 21" 2004

% of shareholding

Last 5 years

experience

Sep 2004 - present Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

May 2003 - Aug 2004 Managing Director of Retail Business

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Company Limited

2001 - 2003 Head of Retail Sales, DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited

Name - Last name

Mr. Victor Yuen Tuck Choy

Position Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised Director
Age 46 years

Education Master Degree of Business Administration University of Warwick

Training Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)

Certificate of Director Accreditation Programme (DAP) Class of 57", 2006
Certificate of Director Certification Programme (DCP) Class of 78" 2006

% of shareholding

0.02

Last 5 years

experience

Apr 2006 - present Director, Executive Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Authorised Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Sep 2004 - Mar 2006 Executive Vice President of Investment Banking

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Jan 2001 - Sep 2004 Senior Vice President of Risk Management

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Company Limited

May 1998 - Dec 2000 Financial Consultant
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Name - Last name

Mr. Teo Kim Meng

Position Independent Director
Age 62 years
Education Bachelor Degree of Science University of Singapore

% of shareholding

0.04

Last 5 years
experience

Aug 2009 - present Independent Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
2001 — Jul 2009 Director, Executive Director and Authorised Director

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
2001 - Jul 2009 Director of Regional Credit Dept. (not as a member of Board of Directors)
UOB Kay Hian Private Limited, Singapore

Aug 2000 - present Director (Financial & Management Advisory)
Asia Select Capital Private Limited, Singapore
Jul 1990 - 2000
Jul 1990 - 2000
Jul 1990 - 2000

Jul 1990 - 2000

Chief Representative, Vickers Ballas (Thailand) Company Limited

Senior Vice President, Vickers Ballas & Company Private Limited, Singapore
Director, Vickers Ballas Investment Management (Hong Kong)

Investment Manager, Vickers Ballas Holdings (Singapore) Company Limited

Name - Last name

Mr. Tan Chek Teck

Position Director, Executive Director and Authorised Director
Age 54 years
Education Bachelor of Business and Accounting (Honours) University of Edinburgh

% of shareholding

0.07

Last 5 years
experience

2005 - present Director, Executive Director and Authorised Director
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Apr 2002 - present

Jun 1990 - Apr 2002

Executive Director, UOB Kay Hian Private Limited, Singapore
General Manager, OUB Securities Private Limited, Singapore

Name - Last name

Ms. Ladda Lenglerdphol

Position Executive Vice President of Securities Trading Department 8
Age 49 years
Education Master Degree of Business Administration NIDA

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

Oct 2001 - present Executive Vice President of Securities Trading Department 8
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
1998 - 2001 Executive Vice President

BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
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Name - Last name

Miss Penprapa Decharaj

Position Executive Vice President of Team Center 2
Age 46 years
Education Master Degree of Business Administration National University

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

Oct 2001 - present Executive Vice President of Securities Trading Team Center 2
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Jun 2009 — Jul 2009

Apr 2008 — Jun 2009

Vice President, Millenium Datanama
Manager, Country Group Securities Public Company Limited

Name - Last name

Mr. Jaratpong Pornprinya

Position Senior Vice President of Institutional Sales
Age 42 years
Education Bachelor Degree of Business Administration University of Miami

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

Senior Vice President of Institutional Sales
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Vice President of Foreign Institutional Service

Oct 2007 - present

2006 — Sep 2007

Capital Nomura Securities Public Company Limited
2004 — 2006
1997 - 2003

Senior Vice President, Ikazawa Precision Co., Ltd.
Project Director and Consultant, Cosmo Bowl Co., Ltd.
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Name - Last name

Mr. Kosin Sripaiboon

Position Senior Vice President of Retail Research
Age 49 years
Education Master Degree of Accounting Thammasart University

Master Degree of Marketing Thammasart University

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

Apr 2006 - present

Feb 2004 - Mar 2006

Sep 2003 - Jan 2004

Mar 2000 - Mar 2002

Senior Vice President of Retail Research

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Vice President of Retail Research

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Assistant Vice President of Retail Research

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Assistant Manager, Regional Container Lines Public Company Limited

Name - Last name

Mrs. Vimonrat Suribud

Position Senior Vice President of Securities Trading Department 3
Age 45 years
Education Master Degree of Economics Kasetsart University

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

Mar 2006 - present

Jan 2005 - Mar 2006

Sep 2001 - Dec 2004

Apr 1998 - Sep 2001

Senior Vice President of Securities Trading Department 3

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

First Vice President of Securities Trading Department 3

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Vice President of Securities Trading Department 3

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Company Limited

Deputy Head of Domestic Sales, ING Barings Securities (Thailand) Limited
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Name - Last name

Ms. Suparak Panyathamakun

Position Senior Vice President of Accounting & Finance
Age 45 years
Education Master Degree of Business Administration Chulalongkorn University

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

Jan 2008 — present

Apr 2002 — Dec 2007

1998 - 2002

Senior Vice President of Accounting & Finance

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Vice President of Accounting & Finance

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Vice President of Accounting

BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities (Thailand) Company Limited

Name - Last name

Mrs. Prompuk Karoonworawong

Position Senior Vice President of Human Resources & Legal, Company Secretary
Age 48 years
Education Bachelor Degree of Economics Thammasart University

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

Jan 2008 — present

Jul 2003 - Dec 2007

Aug 1998 — Jun 2003

Senior Vice President of Human Resources & Legal, Company
UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Vice President of Human Resources & Legal

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Deputy Vice President, Ocean Securities Company Limited

Secretary
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Name - Last name

Ms. Kanda Prayoonruksa

Position Senior Vice President of Credit Control
Age 38 years
Education Master Degree of Finance & Banking (Joint Program)

University of Thai Chamber and The Brimingham University

% of shareholding

Last 5 years
experience

Jan 2008 — present

June 2006 —Dec 2007

Jan 2005 — May 2006

Nov 2003 — Dec 2004

Jun 2003 — Oct 2003

1999 - Feb 2003

Senior Vice President of Credit Control

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Vice President of Credit Control

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Vice President of Risk Management

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Assistant Vice President of Risk Management

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
Senior Corporate Affair Officer

Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited

Senior Sales/ Trading Support

SG Asia Credit Securities Company Limite

Name - Last name

Ms. Suvimol Kespokeaw

Position Senior Vice President of Settlement & Custody
Age 46 years
Education Master Degree of Public and Private Management

National Institutional of Development Administration (NIDA)

% of shareholding

Last 5 years

experience

Oct 2008 - present

Dec 2005 - Sep 2008

Sep 2002 — Nov 2005

Sep 1994 — Aug 2002

Senior Vice President of Settlement & Custody

UOB Kay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Head of Settlement (Retail)

TMB Macquarie Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
Head of Settlement

Syrus Securities Public Company Limited

Assistant Manager of Settlement

BT Securities Company Limited
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